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Report of the Directors

Annual Report & Financial Statements Year Ended 31 December 2006

The directors are pleased to submut their annual report on the affairs of the Company, together with the financial statements and auditors’ report for the
12 months to 31 December 2006

Statement of directors’ responsibllities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with the apphicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financlal year Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the
financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom  Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdem Accounting Standards and
applicable law) The financial statements are required by law to give a true and farr view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss
of the Company for that pened  In prepanng these financial statements, the directors are required to

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

* make judgements and estmates that are reasonable and prudent

* state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the company will cantinue in business
The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financia! statements comply with the Companes Act 1985 They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulantes
Activities
The Company 1s a Helding Company with one 100% owned substdiary, Cambndge Water Plc

Financlal Results and Dividends

£'000
Profit after 1axation 2338
Intenm dividend paid and proposed +]
(2005 £nil)
Retained profit for the year W
Retained profit at 1 January 2006 3,129
Retained profit at 31 December 2006 5464

The Company has made a group loan repayment in Apnl 2007 to its Parent Company ameuning to £2 373 800

Directors
Directors who served through the year are listed on page 2

No director had a matenal nterest in any coniract entered into by the Company dunng the year No director or member of any director's immediate
family has or was granted, any nght to subscnbe to any shares in the Company

Dunng the year the Group purchased and mawntained Directors' and Officers’ Liability Insurance as permitted by the Companies Act 1985
Mr Hunter, having been appointed on 1 December 2006, stands for election
Business Review and Princlpal Activitles

The principal actvity of the company Is to act as the holding company for one 100% owned subsidiary, Cambndge Water PLC  The financial results of
the company are disclosed on pages 6-9

Income for the company consists of divdends recevable and a management charge levied on Cambridge Water PLC
Business Environment and Strategy

Since the company Is a holding company the business environment does not impact the results of the company directly however the strategy of the
company 1s to maximise profits from the regulated income of their 100% subsdiary, whilst exploring other revenue streams from non-regulated sources
1o provide future growth
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Report of the Directors continued
Annual Report & Financial Statements Year Ended 31 December 2006

As mentioned above, Lhe future outlook for the company 1s stable  The large capital iInvestment barners o entry inherent in the water industry prohibit
new entrants however, the iragmentatien of the waler Industry in Scotland's commerclal sector may be repheated i Engtand in the future Cambndge
Water PLC |s taking steps to ensure that it provides an efficiant service to mimimise the risk of price-led compstition by new entrants in the commercial
seclor whilst continuing to axplora othar revenue streams ouiside of the reguiated water sector

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The company Is not subject to interest rate nsk or foreign exchange nsk nor does it consider itself subject to any compettion, consolidation legistation
or regulalory nsk

The carrying amount of the investment in Cambriige Water PLC was compared with its recoverable amount for impairment review purposes As a
result of the review, no impalrment of the invesiment was recorded for the year ended 31 December 2006 {2005 £20 8 milion, see note i3]

Key Performance Indicators

The company does not monitor KPI's bul management monitors distnbutable reserves to maximise the retum to the parent company

Directors’ Interests

No diractors or their immadiate families held equity in the Company during the year or other UK Group companies

No director had an interest in any of the debenture stocks of the Company or any other group company At no time has the Campany operated any
slock oplion schemes for diractors or other staff

Financial RIsk

The Company's actvittes do not expose it to financial nsk or exchange rate nsk  The Board approves all financsal insiruments used by the Company
and reviews palicies for managing the risks  The Company’s financial assets and liabllities comprise borrowings in sterling cash and liquid resources
and various ltems such as trade debtors and creditors that arise directly from its operations The man purpose of tha Company's financial liabililies Is
to raisa finance for the Company's operattons It 1s, and has been throughout the year and the previous year, the Company’s policy that no trading n
financial instruments shall be undertaken

Ultimate Holding Company

As al 31 Decermber 2006, the Company's Immedrate parent company 15 GK1 UK Water (BVI) Limited, incorporated n the Bnitish Virgin Islands This
company Is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheung Kang Infrastructure Hotdings Limied ("CKI™), a company incorporated in Bermuda and whose shares
are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

The ultimate holding company of CKI and therefore ultimate controlling party of the Group, is Hutchison Whampoa Limited, a company mcorporated in
Hang Kong

The smallest and largest groups of which CKI UK Water Limited is a member and for which group financial statements are drawn up are Cheung Kong
Infrastructure Holdings Limited and Hutchisan Whampoa Limited respectively

Auditors

Each of the persons who Is a direclor al the date of approval of this report confirms that

1 so far as the director 15 aware, there is no relevant audit informalion of which the company's auditers are unaware, and
2 the director has taken ali the staps that he/she ought to have taken as a director In ordar to make hsmselfarself aware of any relevant audit
nformation and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be inlerpreted n accordance with the provisions of $234ZA of the Companises Act 1985

Deloitte & Touche LLP have axpressed therr wilingness to continue in office as audriors and a resolulion to reappoint them will be propesed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Supplier Payment Pollcy

Tha Company's normal policy 1s to pay suppllers at the end of the month following that in which goods or services are invoiced These lerms are made
known to suppllers when orders are placed

Charitable Contributions
No chantable contnbutions were made in the year by the Company

By order of the Board

<

Norose Company Sgefetarfl Services Lid
Company Secratary

J ) stoctaber 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TQ THE MEMBERS OF CKI UK WATER LIMITED

Wa have audried the financial slatements of CKI UK Water Limied for the year endad 31 Decambar 2008 which comprisa the profil and loss account ths
balance shest and the neted notes 1 to 16 These financial statements have bean preparsd under the accounting policies set out thersin

Theés report 18 made solely to the Comparty s members as a body W accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matiers we are required to state fo them i an auditors repor! and for no other
purpess  To the fullest extart permated by law wa do pot accept or azsume responzibilily to anyana other than the Company and the Company s
members as a body for aur audi wark for this report or for the opiions wa have formed

Raspective responuibilities of directors and auditers

The directors responsibilitiaa for praparing the financial ststemants In accordance with applicable lew and Untted Kingdam Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Genarally Acceptsd Accounting Practice) ars set out in the Statsmsnt of Dictors Responsibites

Our reaponaibility 18 1o audit tha financial stataments in accardance with rslevant Urisd Kingdom lagal and regulatory requiremants and Intematianal
Standamds on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We raport 1o you our opinion as to whether tha financial statsmenta give a true and farr view and are properly prepared in accardance with the
Companes Acl 1985 Wa ai30 report to you whether in our opinan the information given in the Directots Report 13 consistant with the financial
slatemants

In addition we reporl io you f In our opimion the company has not kept propesr accountng records f we have nol received all the information and
axplanations we requine for cur audtt or if by Iaw reg g directors. and othar t ct 18 nol

We read the directors report and consider the implications for our report if we become awats of any apparent musstatements within rt
Basis of sudit opinlon

Wa conductad our audi in accordance with Intarnational Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) issusd by the Audting Practices Board An audt
ncludes sxsmination on a tesl basis of svidence rekevant 1o the amounts and disclosures in the financial slatements (1 alsa Includes an asssssmant of
1he significant ard Judg mads by tha di In the of the financial stalements and of whether tha actaunting pohces ars
appropnate to ihe circumstancas of the Company consmistently apphed and adequately diaclosad

We planned and performed our audit s¢ a4 ¢ ¢blamn all the inf srd i which we dered ry in order to provida us with
sufficient swdence 10 give raasonable assurance that the financial stataments are free from mataral msstalamant whathar caused by fraud ar olher
irrequianty or eor In forming our opinion wa also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presantation of information in the financial statements

Oplnlon
In aur opimen

the financial statements gve a oue and faw view 1In with United Kings by pted A g Pracuce of the atate of the
company a affairs as a1 31 December 2006 and of its profit for the ysar then anded

the financial statements have been propary prep n o weith the C: Act 1985 and

the informaton grven in the Dwectors Report 18 congistent with the financal statements

Deloitte 4 Touvcle Lof

Culotte & Teuche LLP
Chartered Accountants and Regisferad Audidora

Lendon
N ‘OdobtrZOO?
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Profit and Loss Account

Anmesal Report & Financial Statements Year Ended 31 December 2008

Notes 2008 2005
£000 £000
Tumaover 2
Management Fes Income 8 oy
Grosa profit ns 309
Administrative expensas {282) {418)
Operating profit/loss) 3 a6 {107}
Investment Incoma 2300 2 504
Interast recenvable and samilar income 1
Interest payabla and simidar charges 4 - (85)
Profit on ordinary aclivities befors taxation 2335 2313
Tax on profit on ordniary actmbes g - -
Profit on ordinary aclivities after taxation and retained profit
for the year / period 2 335 2,312
Al turriover snd Operating profit is desved fom continuing apecations.
Theee was no recognised gams or kostes in either ywar Oy than prof for that year and hance no sialement of IDkal MEOQUSEd Giwis dnd losses has been presertad
Balance Sheet
Annual Report & Financal Statements Year Ended M1 Decomber 2006
Nolss 1006 2005
£'000 E'000
Fixed assets
Irvestments 7 31 409 31408
31408 31,408
Current nasets
Debiors 8 305 309
‘Cash at bank and in hand 1 1
308 kil
Creditors  amounts falling due withan one year ] (2811) (4 50)
Net curvent liabliitles (2 305) {4 840)
Total assets less current labilities 20104 6,769
Creditors  amounts falling due after more than one yeal 10 (B 479) {6478}
Net assets 22825 20 280
Capital and reserves
Cafed up share caplial 1 17 181 17,161
Profil and loss account 13 5484 3129
Sharehoider's funds 12 22625 20,290

Approved by |he Boardon  October 2007

and on ther behalt by
J h—\_« x \

ANDREW HUNTER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Annus| Report & Financiai Statermants Year Ended 31 Cacambaer 2008

1 Aceounting peollcies
A summary of the principal accounting polices sll of which have been appled consistantty throughaut the year and the previous year ia st out below

& Basls of accounting

The financal AN prepx under the cost +and n with Unded Kingdom sccounting standards and iaw

b Bssls of consolidation

Tha fallowing aocouNta rapresent the Company's sctvibes only and nol thoss of the Group as the Company has applied a228A of the Companies Act axempting & paranl
undertaking from prepenng and dalivanng consolidated accounts on the basia that the Company meats all the cond iona of the sforementoned secuon of the Act and the
Parent Company (Cheung Kong Infrastructure Hokdings Limied a company incorporated in 8ermuda) propames group accaunts

€ Investmanta
Tha Company holds 100% of the shars capiis| of Cambrdge Water Plc  The Compeny cames the value of the Investmant st cosl isss provision for impasmants

d Taxation

Currsnt tax including UK corparation tax 1s pravided at amounta sxpacied 1 be pad [or ecoverad) using (he tax rates and laws thal have besn snacted or substantally
anacted by the balince shest dets

Dalerred tax 1 racognised in respect of all uming theil have ong) but nat atihe belance sbeel date wheis ransactiona or svents that resull in
an cbligation to pay mone (ax in the future or a nght to pay less tex in the future have cccurted at the balance shest dats  Timing differences are diffarences batween the
Oroup a taxable profits and 14 results 88 $1ated In e financial atatemants that anise from the Inclusion of gains and koases In Lax asssssmenia in pancds d flerent from
thoas 1n which they ars recognimad in the financial statements.

Defarred tax 18 not recognised when fixed asssts are reva'usd uniess by ihe balance sheat dale there o a binding sgroemant (o sell the ivah.ed asssts and the gain or
loas sxpected 1a arise on sa'e has basn recogrised in the financal statements Nethar i3 deferred 1ax racognised when fixed asssts are sald and & 18 mors Lkely ithan
not that the taxable gain witl ba mlied over being charged 10 tax anly f and whan the raplacement asssts are sakd

Defermed tax & measured ol the aversge tax rates thal ars axpacted Lo apply in the penods i which the Uming difarences are expacled 1o revarse based on tax mies
and lawa 1het have bean snacted or substantvely snacted by ihe balance shest date Dsfarred tax s mansured on a non-doctunind baks

& Turnover
Tumover epresenis 8 managaint Charge recshad from Cambridge Water Pic
I Bank borrowings

{nterest bsanng bank loans and cverdrafis are recorded 41 the procseds recsived nat of direct lasue costs Finance charpes Including premiuma payable
on sattlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs are accounied for on an accrual bass in the profit and loas account as they arise
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Notes to the Financlal Statements continued
Annusl Report & Financial Statements Year Ended 31 Cecambwer 2008

2 Tumeover and ssgmantal analysia

Tumover mp! . fas d from Cambrndge Walar Plc
3 Qparating Profit 2008 2005
£'000 £000
Opemting profil1s atated efter crediting/(charging)
Othar Income  Bottled Watsr Expanses reimbursed 40
Adrmirgirative sxpenias
Bottied Water Expensas (40)
Legal Fees @)
Stetutory Audd Fess (8) 19)
Audd Fess incurmed on CWC awdd for acquistion {40)
Maragement Fes Exparses (318) (309)
4 Intersat paysbls wos 2005
£000 £000

interast on pareni company ans

5 Direct an tlon and smploy
Nona of the dumctors mosred any amolumants in spect of santcas provided to the Company in the cument or prior year
Nona of 1he directors ware membars of the defined benefit panskan schama in the currant or pricr year

The company haa no smglays#s in the current or priar ysar

8 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

I The tax chargs for the period was £nil (2005 Enily

Factors affecting tax charge for the paried
The tax assessad foribe period is lowar than the standard rale of corporstion tax in the UK (30%) The dffarences s axplainad below

2008 2005
£'000 £000
Profit on ordindry actities bafare tax 2335 2,313
Cerparation lax at 30% (2005 30%) 700 6
Group relef wihout U] 324 a2
Incoms not changeabls to tax {680} (751}
Othar tirming differsnces 334} 25
Current tax change for the pariod
T Fixad assatinvestments
|
| 2008 2005
E000 £000
Cont 52 211 52211
Impanment (20,802] 20,802)
Nu1 Bock Valus of Investmant in Cambrdgs Watsr PLC 31,409 31,400
The Company hokis 100% of the share capital of Cambridge Water Pic
8 Debtors
2008 2005
Amounts falkng due within one year £000 £000
Amaunts owad by Group underiakings 305 e
305 309
| 9 Creditors smounts falling dus within one year
| 2000 2008
E'000 £000
Imercompany Loans 1749
Trade credacrs 45
AMOUnts due 1o parent company a7

The £2 821 000 ntercompay loan held a1 M December 2005 was repaid in April 2008 In the same month & losn of £1 749 000 was taken out repayable in Apnl 2007
Bath loans were arranged with Charlex Internatonal & group company and are nteres! fres

10 Creditors amounts falling due after more than one ysar

2008 2005

£°000 000

Group compaeny loan dus after 5 yesrs B8 479 o479
PR am

The perpetusl group compdny koan i3 aterest free
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
Annual Report & Financial Stxiamants Yaar Ended 31 December 2008

11 Shars capital w000 2005
E£'000 £000
Authornsed sham capral —_—
17 181 375 ordinary shares of £1 each 17,161 17,184
Cated up share capital
Alctted and fully paxd
17 161 175 ordinary shares of £1 each 17,161 17,181
2R illatlon of In shareholder s funds 2006 2005
£ 000 £000
Profit after taxation kor the financial year 2335 {18 490}
Net incresss in sharshokdsra funds 2335 (15 490}
Opaning sharahoklers funds 20 290 38780
Closing shareholder's funds 22 625 20290
13 Reasrves Profit and loss
£'000
AL 31 Decamber 2005 3120
Ratained profit for the year 2335
Profit and loes resarve 5 484

14 Related party transactions

An & wholly owned subsdry of Hutchison Whampos Limited thae Company has taken advantage of tha sxempten under FRS B not to discicse (ransactions with clher

froup companies

15 Ulttmats holding company

An at 31 December 2008 tha Company's immedate panrent company & CK) UK Watar (3Y)) Limited incorporated in the Brilsh Virgin lslands This company s a whelly
awned subsidiary of Cheung Keng Infastructure Holdings Limited ((CKI ) & company incorporated in 8ermuda and whoss sharss are Iizted on the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange

Tha utimats hakding company of CKI and (harefora utimaie controlling party of the Group 1s Hutchlson Whampoa Limrted a

y porated in Hong Kong

Tha srmallast and Wrgest groupa of which CKI UK Weter Limited o & member and for which graup financial stalemants are drawn up are Cheung Kong Infrastruciure

Hedings Limeted and Hutchisan Whampoa Limred respectively

18 Cashflow Statsment

Undar the provisions of Financial Reporting Standard No 1 {Revized) the Company has not prepared a cash flow atatemnant because s utimate parem

undertakung Hutchison ¥Whampos Limied which 3 registered in Hong Kong haas prepared consolidaied financhal sia
results of the Company and contsin & cash flow statament

wnts which are publicly avallable and include the
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CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

POWERING INTO OUR
SECOND DECADE

2006 marked the beginning of the second
decade of Cheung Kong Infrastructure
Holdings Limited (“CKI” or the “Group”)

as a listed company. In general terms, our
businesses in the key markets of Hong Kong,
Mainland China, Australia and the United
Kingdom have all performed well during the
year. We have laid very solid foundations

and have ample resources to fund future
expansion.

4 CHEUNG KONG INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED




In 2008, profit after tax attnbutable to shareholders
was HK$3,670 milion, while earnings per share
were HK$1 83 This would have been the best
performance since inception, If not for the results
of 2005 which benefited from a one-off gan of
HK$3 7 biflion from the divestment of part of our
Australian electncity businesses to Spark
Infrastructure Group (*Spark Infrastructure”) in
December 2005 Even though CKI's Australian
asset base has been reduced as a result of the
divestment, our averall profit generation capacity
has not dminished, as evidenced by the higher
than 2004 profit parformance in 2006

Profit Attributable to Shareholders
{HK$ millon)

i~
=
©
8,000 l ~

3,750
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3500 |

3,250

3,000

2,750

2,500

2280

The Board of Directors of CKl {the "Beard”) has
recommended a final dvidend of HK$0 75 per
share Together with the interim dividend of

HK$0 25 per share, thus will bring the total dividend
for the year to HK$1 Q0 per share, a 5 5 per cent
Increase over last year This 1s consistent with CKl's
stable dividend growth trend since listing The
proposed dividend will be paid on 15th May, 2007
following approval at the Annual General Meeting,
to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company on

10th May, 2007

Dividends Per Share
HKS)
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080
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020
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CHAIRMAN'’S LETTER

The Year in Review

Hongkong Electric

Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited (*Hongkong
Electnc”} continues to be an important profit contributor
to CKI, generatng HK$2,632 millon in 2006 During
the year under review, Hongkong Electric reported net
profit after tax of HK$6,842 millon Hongkong Electric
has maintained its supply reliabiity at 99 989 per cent |
a distinction that 1s virtually unrvalled in the world

The overseas businesses of Hongkong Electric have
also performed very well and continued to contribute

to the growth of the business

This will bring the total
dividend for the year to
HiK$1.00 per share, a
5.5 per cent. increase
over last year. This is
consistent with CKP’s
stable dividend growth
trend since listing.

] CHEUNG KONG INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED

International Infrastructure Investments

Qur businesses in Maniand China delivered
commendable performance in 2008, as the nation’s
GNP continues to grow The profit contnibution from
CKI's China portfolio increased to HK$869 millien
FPowering our strong performance was yet another
record year for the Zhuhai Power Plant The profit
caontrbution from Units 1 and 2 of the Zhuhal Power
Plant reached a new high, surpassing even iast year's
exceptional results The Siping Cogen Power Flants in
Jilin also continued to perform well Duning the year, the
divestment of the Qinyang Power Plants in Henan,
Manland China was completed, generating a one-off
gain As regards CKl's toli road portfolio in Mainiand
China, steady returns were delivered in general, and
performances were In ine with forecasts

In CKI's newest market, the United Kingdom, the
performance of our two Investments has been pleasing
and a profit contribution of HK$316 m||||op was
recorded 2006 represented the first full year of profit
contribution from Northern Gas Networks Limited
(*Northern Gas Networks”), with double-digit cash
yields recorded As regards Cambridge Water PLC
(*Cambndge Water"}, healthy returns were generated,
exceeding our original budget

The results from our Austrahan portfolio were adversely
affected by the performance of the Cross City Tunnel
and the divestment of our interest 1in the electncity
distrioution businesses, with profit contribution reducing
to HK$64 million




— Traffic levels for the Cross City Tunnel project, in
which CKl has a 50 per cent stake, were
significantly lower than expected, leading to an
operating loss of HK$262 millen being recorded
by the Group The project company has been
unable to generate sufficient revenue to service (ts
non-recourse project debt, resulting in a recewver
being appointed for the project just pror to the year
end CKI has accordingly made a further asset
mpairrment of HK$279 mullion in 2006 The entire
book value of the investment has now been fully

written down

- As for the electncity businesses, our stake was
reduced following the divestment of part of our
shareholdings in ETSA Utilities, CitiPower [ Pty
Lid and Powercor Australla Limited in 2005 The
fundamentals of these power distribution businesses
continue to be sold and they have outperformed
operating targets for the year

Commencing 2006, the Group has also receved
income and management fees from Spark Infrastructure
by virtue of our 9 9 per cent stake and our interest

In the management contract Envestra Limited, one

of Australia’s largest listed natural gas distribution
companies in which CKl has a 16 4 per cent stake,
continued to generate double-digit cash yields during
the year

Matenals Business

Following a number of challenging years in the matenals
industry, our Infrastructure matenals dwvision recorded
an encouraging profit of HK$110 million in 2006 Market
analysts indicate that construchon activity in Hong

Kong has reached its bottom, and as a result, better

prospects for our matenals business are anticipated

On the whole, our
investments have
exceeded expectations,
enabling us to deliver
continued profit and
dividend growth to our
shareholders.

A New Decade of Opportunity

Over the last ten years, CKI has grown significantly

and recorded a number of majer corporate milestones
Beginning as a Hong Kong and Mainland China-focused
company, we have now evolved into a globat infrastructure
player with diverse investments in several Industnes
across China, Australia and the United Kingdom On the
whole, our nvestments have exceeded expectatons,
enabling us to deliver continued profit and dvidend growth
to our shareholders We have developed an impressive
reputation in the iInfrastructure sector and have ample

resources to fund new investments in the future

ANNUAL REPORT 2006 7




CHAIRMAN'’S LETTER

Sustained Organic Growth

CKl expects to achieve organic growth and deliver solid
returns on our existing Nvestments as we continue on

our roadmap of business expanson

In Mamland China, commercial operatiorns of the
Group’s new power project, Units 3 and 4 of the

Zhuhal Power Plant, commenced in February 2007

This 18 a RMBS bilion joint venture project n which CKI
has a 45 per cent stake and Guangdong Yudean
Group Co Ltd and The Electnc Development (Group)
Company of Zhuhai Special Economic Zone collectively
hold the other 55 per cent stake The commissioning
will provide immediate profit contribution and boost the
Group's portfolio in Mainland China The additicn of
Units 3 and 4 greatly enhance the capacity of the Zhuha
Power Plant, increasing total insialled capacity from
1,400 MW to 2,600 MW As the demand for power In
the Guangdong region continues to grow, we expect the
Zhuhai Power Plant to reman one of the star performers
in our Mainland portfolio for years to come

CKl expects to achieve
organic growth and
deliver solid returns on
our existing investments
as we continue on our
roadmap of business
expansion.

8 CHEUNG KONG INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED

We expect to see continued organic growth i our
energy portfolio In Australia as we expand our regulated
asset base Growing demand in Australia’s urban areas
and nsing returns on an Increasing asset base will
ensure that these regulated businesses generate strong
returns for the Group In addition, we will niiate new
strategies to enhance the scope and returns of the
non-regulated revenue of these businesses

In the United Kingdom, CKl 1s also committed to
organic growth Northern Gas Networks continues to
expand and upgrade its gas distribution network to
cater for nsing demand and new customer connections
Cambrdge Water 1s also seeing encouraging potential
from the growth in its water servicing area

Acquisitions to Expand Portfolio

CKIl will continue 1o pursue acquisition opportunities
around the globe to further enhance our portiolio of
infrastructure Investments We are currently studying
and participating in the bidding process for a number
of projects in existing markets, as well as locking for
opportunities in new ones Not only will we pursue

investmenis In ndustnes we are already familiar




with, such as power and toll roads, but we will also Mr Enc Kwan will be retinng as Deputy Managing

hvestigate new possibikties, ranging from other Director and Executve Director of CKI He was one of
reguiated businesses 1o greenfield projects CKI the founding members of the Group who witnessed its
has very sound financials, with cash on hang of more Iisting and growth, through a strategy of globalisation
than HK$7 7 bilien and a net debt to equity ratio of and diversification, over the past decade 1would Iike 1o
4 per cent We are very well placed to acquire new exiend my thanks and appreciation for his contribution
projects, further ennching our porticlio to CKl over the years

Divestments to Maximise Shareholder Value | would also ke to take thus opportunity to thank the

Board, management and staff for ther commitment

As part of our slrategy to achieve the best returns for and hard work, as well as our shareholders for therr

shareholders, we will review our asset portfolo from continued support and confidence In the Group

time 1o time and prudently consider divesting certain 2

4 ¥ £
assets when the timing and price 1s nght On this //
pont, CKlis n the process of divesting 21 per cent /
= ———

of the Lane Cove Tunnel In Australia, with the am of

maxinising shareholder value through the generation ot Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor
cash and a premium, as well as the retention of a share Charman

in the future upside through a defined mecharusm for

revenue shanng Following the divestment exercise, the Hong Kang, 15th March, 2007
Group s shareholding will be reduced from 40 per cent
to 19 per cent The Lane Cove Tunnel 15 scheduled

to open to traffic this year

CKIl has very sound
financials, with cash

on hand of more than
HK$7.7 billion and a net
debt to equity ratio of

4 per cent. We are very
well placed to acquire
new projects, further
enriching our portfolio.
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GROUP MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT

THE ROADMAP
OF SUCCESS

The Role of Infrastructure

Over the course of history, the development of
infrastructure has been tha basis of cvihzation and
fuglled the growth of communtigs Infrastructure has
brought people together and enabled people to conduct
their vas with easé and certainty As more and more of
the world's population now reside in derser sub-urban
areas, the need for effective and rehable infrastruciure

10 CHEUNG KONG INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED

To understand the
business of CKl, it is
imperative to
comprehend the global
infrastructure landscape
in which we operate. It is
CKl’s unique competitive
advantages, against this
backdrop, that explain
our growth to date.

suppart has never been greater Without a doubt,
infrastructure underpins economic development and 18
crucial to the advancement of all communities

The Industry of Infrastructure

Around the world, infrastructure development s growing
rapidly and becoming a much sought-after industry 1t
has been reported that in just the energy and power
sector alone, mergers and acquisitions for 2006 were
estimated at over HK$4 7 trilion




There i1s currently an emergence of new infrastructure
nvestment opportunities as more government
organizations around the world are outsourcing projects
and the Public Private Partnership {or PPP) model
becomes increasingly popular At the same time, the
number of Investors in this area 1s also on the nse as
rmore enterprses and funds are drawn to the relatively
stable cash returns and inflation-hedge characterstics
offered by infrastructure projects

The barriers to market entry in nfrastructure are high —
infrastructure projects require capital INntensive
investment, and accordingly complex nsk managemeant
and assessment In addition to being capable of
investing large sums of money, infrastructure companies
also need to consider & host of factors in ther
investment market, including the 1ssues of pclitics, fiscal
policy, legal framework, inferest rates, currency and
foreign exchange, taxation, GDP, consumer purchasing
power, availlability of capital, and population growth

amaong others

Achieving Success in Infrastructure

For an infrastructure company 10 be successful, it
should possess very strong financial capabihties to fund
investments Good project management abiiity s also
vital to overseeing often huge, complex and capital
ntensive projects In additien, infrastructure investment
companias must have a clear policy on how to assess
and mitigate nsk

CKI - A Decade of Achievement

In just over ten years of history, CKl has emerged as a
major player on the world infrastructure stage CKI was
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in July 1996
and became a constituent stock of the Hang Seng Index

within a year, quite a record achievement at that time
Shortly after isting, we received an “A-" rating from
Standard and Pocr's, which we have maintaned

gver since

Over the last decade, year-on-year growth has been
recorded across a number of key performance
nchcators For the first year after isting, CKl reported
profit of HK$854 million In 2006, profit reached
HK$3,670 million, reprasenting an incraase of over 3
times in the last ten years Total assets have grown by
around 3 times to reach HK$47 6 billcn The company's
market capitalization has doubled to over HK$54 billion
as of 31st December, 2006

From being primarnly focused on Hong Kong and
Mantand China, we have since come of age as an
international infrastructure company, with iInvestments
also in Austraha, the United Kingdom, Canada and the
Philippines Our operations now span electricity
generation and distribution, gas distnbution, toll roads,
water treatment and distnbution, infrastructure matenals

and environmental intiatives

Our business began with interests in matenals, energy
and toll roads in Hong Kong and Mailand China We
have invested over HK$10 bilion in a diverse range of
projects In Manland China Our energy investments
have a total electricity generation capacity of
approximately 3,000 MW, while our toll road projects
span approximately 450 kilometres in different provinces
across the country Our matenals business includes
cement, asphalt, concrete and aggregates operations
Through the gperating comparnies of Green Island
Cement Company Limited and Alllance Construction
Matenals Limited, CKl1s the market leader in Hong

Kong's infrastructure matenals industry
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In 1897, we acquired a controling stake i Hongkong
Electnc Holdings Limited, the sole electnaity generator
and distributor 1o Hong Kong Island and Lamma Island,
with a history dating back to 1882 Hongkong Electnc 1s
one of the most relabie electnoity suppliers in the world
with an excepticnally cutstanding supply reliability in
excess of 99 999% This dependable source of electricity
has been crucial to the terntory's economic development
and makes Hong Kong the envy of many major cities in
the wortd that have suffered from power blackouts

After firmly establishing our businesses in Hong Kong
and Maintand China, we commenced our story of
dwersification and globakzation by expanding into new

markets and new industries

We began our expansion programme with the Australian
market in 1992 through the acquisition of a 19 97%
stake in Envesira Limited, the largest histed natural gas
distributor in the country with a distribution network that
serves over 970,000 customers and spans
approximately 19,100 kilometres Buillding on this
momentum, we amassed a broad portfolio of electricity
assets In Australia, including ETSA Utilities, the pnmary
electricity distributor in the state of South Australa that
serves more than 770,000 customers, Powercor
Awustralla Limited, the largest electricity distributor in the
state of Victora that serves over 660,000 customers
and CtiPower [ Pty Ltd , which distributes electricity to
approxmately 295,000 customers across the central
husiness district and inner suburban areas of
Melbourne

These successiul investments have made us the largest
power distnbutor In Australia and culminated in the
dwestmenti of part of our stake in the electncity
businesses to Spark Infrastructure Group and the listing
of Spark Infrastructure on the Australian Stock Exchange
at the end of 2005 Spark infrastructure has a current
market capitalization of about HK$12 billion In addition

12 CHEUNG KONG INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED

to energy projects, CKl also has a stake in the Lane
Cove Tunnel In Sydney and a 49% stake in AgquaTower,
the exclusive potable water supplier of four regional

towns in Viciona

As our Australian Investments reached a critical mass,

we further diversified our global footprnt in 2004 by
expanding into the gas sector N the United Kingdom CKI
won the tender for Northern Gas Networks Limited, which
serves a population of around 6 7 millon We also
acquired a 100% stake in Cambndge Water PLC,

a water distnbutor that supplies a population of
approximately 300,000 in Cambndgeshire

Overall, the total net asset value of CKl's investments are
approximately HK$20 billion in Hong Kong, HK$5 billion
in Mainland China, HMK$9 billion in Austraiia and HK$4
billon in the United Kingdom

Reasons for Success

CKI has maintained a leading position n the markets
that we operate due to five major achievements

1) Diversified Portfolio

We have built up a quahty asset portfolio across a
number of infrastructure ndustries around the world
Thes has helped to diversify our nsk profile

2) Global Network

CKl's strategy has been to devote our resources and
time into bullding and growing our expertise In each
market we operale n, staring with Hong Kong and
Mainland China, then Australta and now the United
Kingdom By clustering our investmenis, we have
been able to attan more synergies between our
businesses and magnify our market leadership
position In addition, as part of the Cheung Kong
Group. which has businesses in 56 countries across

the globe, we are able to leverage on synergies with




e
i

]

¥

our sister companies As one of the largest foreign
nvestors, the strong presence and market position
of the Cheung Kong Group in CKYs koy markets has
been highly benghcial in accelerating our
development

3) Secure Investments

When it comes 10 selecting which projects to invest
in, we favour those iInvestments that offer requiated
cashfiow Currently around 90% of earnings come
from regulated businesses in developed markets
Provicing us with stable earnings and calcuiated
rnisks that we are comfortable with, CKI's preference
Is to Invest In existing projects which can provide
immediate cashfiow rather than greenfield projects
which tend to be nskier in terms of construction nisks
and ime delay Our prudent investment philosophy is
well-respected throughout infrastructure and
nvestment circles

4) Expertise

Our management approach to an international
business 15 to think global and act Iocal Qur success
1n the markets in which we operate g In our
commitment to local experise The CKI team
compnses many talented and loyal indwviduals with
an international perspective and transferable
expertise tn our operating cormpanies, we have
nurtured local talent and prormoted them within our
ranks

§) Strong Balance Shaet

We have acquired a decade of expenence n making
sound investrments, gathenng extensive market
understanding and establishing important
connections with experts i the fields of finance,
regulation, construction and operation In the last few
years, CKl has been nvited o participate in almost

all major infrastructure projects avallable in the
market With our strong financial platform, over
HK$7 7 bilion cash on hand and 2 net debt 1o equity
ratia of 4% (as at 31st December, 2006), we are in
an excellent posrion o pursue mMore INvestment
opporlunibes and participate In more néw projects in
the future

CKIl has achieved more than a decade of continued
growth by focusing on delvenng long-term, prediciable
cash flow With a reputation for thorough due diigence
and innovative: deal structures, we are well placed 10
sustain our market leading position We are probably
one of the few infrastructure companies in the world that
1S able and willing o participate in some of the mega-
Infrastructure projects available We have been posting
achievernents in vanous areas of busnass, including
acquisitions, organic growth, consolidations and
dwestmenis

The Roadmap for the Future

Looking forward the opportunities i the global
infrastructure industry are mmense As well as
generaling orgame growth in our existng businesses,
we will continue to pursue new investments that accord
with our prudent invesiment cnteria CKI will also explore
new corporate finance inthatives and divestments to
further enhance the value of our business

With our strong market position and formidable financial
might, we are weli placed 10 generate continued growth
and returns in the future We are highly confident of
mamntaming our growth momerttum in the corming ten

years and beyon "
A

H L Kam

Group Managing Director

Hong Kong, 15th March, 2007
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Resources, Treasury Activities
and Gearing Ratio

The Group’s capital expenditure and invesiments were
funded from cash on hand, internal cash generation,

syndicated loans, notes 1ssued and other project loans

As at 31st December, 2006, total borrowings of the
Group amounted to HK$9,327 million, which included
Hong Kong dellar syndicated loan of HK$3 8 billion
and foreign currency horrowings of HK$5,527 millien
Of the total borrowings, 41 per cent were repayable in
2007, 38 per cent were repayable between 2008 and
2011 and 21 per cent repayable beyond 2011 The
Group's financing activities continue to be well receved

and fuily supported by its bankers

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash
and financial management To achieve better nsk control
and minimise the cost of funds, the Group’s treasury
activities are centralised Cash s generally placed in
short-term deposits mostly denominated n U S dollars,
Hong Kong dollars or Australian dollars The Group's
Iquidity and financing reguirements are reviewed
regularly The Group will consider new financing while
rmaintaning an apprepriate level of gearng in anticipation

of new Investments or matunty of bank loans

a6 CHEUNG KONG INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED

As at 31st December, 2006, the Group mantaned a
gearing ratio of 4 per cent which was based on its nat
debt of HK$1,607 milion and shareholders’ equity of
HK$35,824 milion This ratio was shghtly higher than
the gearing ratio of 3 per cent at the year end of 2005,
mainly due to the capital contribution to Lane Cove

Tunnel being funded from cash on hand n March 2606

To minimise currency nsk exposure N respect of its
Investments in other countries, the Group generally
hedges those investments with the apprecpriate level of
borrowings denominated in the lecal currencies of those
countries The Group also entered into certain interest rate
and currency swaps to mitigate interest rate and other
currency exposure risks As at 31st December, 2006,

the contractual notional amounts of these dervative

nstruments amaounted to HK$8,270 million




Charge on Group Assets

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group's interests

in an affilated company with carrying value of
HK$1,773 milien were pledged as part of the security
to secure bank borrowings totaling HK$2,740 million
granted to the affiliated company Moreover, the Group’s
obligations under finance leases totaling HK$27 million
were secured by charge over the leased assets with

carrying value of HK$225 miltion

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st Decembaer, 2006, the Group was subject to

the following contingent liabilities

HK$ mullion

Guarantee In respect of a bank lgan drawn 586
by an affilated company

Performance bonds 141

Total 727

Employees

Tne Group, Including 1ts subsidiares but excluding
affllated comparies employs a tota! of 1,053 employees
Employees’ cost {excluding directors’ emoluments)
arnounted to HK$255 millon The Group ensures that the
pay levels of its employees are competitive and that its
employees are rewarded on a performance related basis
within the general framework of the Group's salary and

bonus system

Preterential subscription of 2,978,000 new shares of
the Company was given to those employees who had
subscribed for shares ot HK$1 00 each in the Company
at HK$12 65 per share on the flotation of the Company
N 1986 The Group does not have any share option

scheme for employees
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RISK FACTORS

The Group's businesses, financial condition, results of operations or growth prospacts may be affected by nisks and

uncertanties pertaining to the Group's businesses The factors set out below are those that the Group believes could
result in the Group’s businesses, financial condition, resulis of operations or growth prospects differing materially from
expected or histoncal results There may be other nisks In addition to these shown below which are not known to the

Group or which may not be matenal now but could turn out 1o be materal in the future

Economic Condition and Interest Rates

The Industres in which the Group operates are affected by the economic conditions of the various places where the

Group's Investments or operations are located, the population growth of these places, mark to market value of securities
nvestments, the currency environmaent and interest ratas cycles There can be no assurance that the combination of the
above factors the Group experiences in the future will not adversely affect ts financial condition or results of operations

in particular, iIncome from finance and treasury operations 1s dependent upon the interest rate and currency environment
and market conditions, and therefore there can be no assurance that changes in these conditions will not adversely

affect the Group's financial condition or results of operations

infrastructure Market

Some of the investments owned by the Group (for example, gas and electricity) are subject 1o regulatory pricing
and strict adherence must be made to the licence requirements, codes and guidelines established by the relevant
regulatory authorities from time to tme Failure to comply with these licence requirements, codes or guidelines may
lead to penalties, or, m extreme circumstances, amendment, suspensicn or cancellation of the relevant licences

by the authorities

The distribution networks of the Group’s utilities investments are aiso exposed to supply interruptions If a severe storm,
fire, sabotage, terronst attack or other unplanned event interrupts service, the loss of cash flow resulting from tha
interruption and the cost of recovery from network damage could be considerable and potentially cause poor customer
perception and may aiso lead to clams and htigations Moreover, some lossas from events such as terronst attacks
may not be recoverable Increases in the number or duration of supply interruptions could result In matenal Ncreases in
the costs associated with the operation of the distnbution networks, which could have a matenal adverse effect on the
businesses, financial conditions and results of operation of the Group
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RISK FACTORS

Capital Expendiiure

A significant amount of capital expenditure 1s required for the Group to acquire new investments and to maintain the
assets of its existing businesses While the relevant asset companies have therr own asset management plans, there 1s
a risk that due to unforeseen events, capital expenditure required for the replacement of assets could exceed budgeted

amounts and hence affecting the businesses, financial condtions and results of operation of the Group

Currency Fluctuations

The results of the Group 18 recorded in Hong Kong doflars but its vanous subsidiaries and associates may receve
revenue and incur expenses In other currencies Any currency fluctuations on translation of the accounts of these
subsidianes and associates and also an the repatriation of earrings, equity nvestments and loans may therefore
impact on the Group’s performance Although currency exposures had been managed by the Group, a depreciation or
fluctuation of the currencies In which the Group conducts operations relative to the Hong Kong dollar could adversely
affect the Group’s financial condiion or results of operations

Strategic Partners

Some of the businesses of the Group are conducted through non wholly-owned subsidiaries and associates in which
the Group shares control (in whole or in part} and strategic allances had been formed by the Group with other strategic
or business partners There can be no assurance that any of these strategic or business partners will continue ther
relationships with the Group in the future or that the Group will be able to pursue its stated strategies with respect to its
non wholly-owned subsidiaries and associates and the markets in which they operate Furthermore, the joint venture
partners may (a) have economic or busingss interests or geals that are inconsistent with these cf the Group, (b) take
actions contrary to the Group's policies or objectives, (c) undergo a change of control, {d) expenence financial and other
difficulties, or (&) be unable or unwiling to fulfil ther obligations under the joint venture, which may affect the Group’s

financial cendition or results of operations
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Impact of Local, National and International Regulations

The local business nsks in different countries and cities in which the Group operates could have a matenal impact on
the financial condition, results of operations and growth prospects of the businesses in the relevant market The Group
has investments in different countries and cities around the world and the Group 18, and may increasingly become,
axposed to different and changing political, social, legal, regulatery and environmental requirements at the local, national
or international level Also, new policies or measures by governments, whether fiscal, regulatory, environmental or other
competitive changes, may lead to an increase in additional or unplanned caprtal expenditure, pose a sk to thg overall
mvestment return of the Group’s businesses and may delay or prevent the commercial operaton of a business with

resulting foss of revenues and profit

impact of New Accounting Standards

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants {*HKICPA") had issued a number of new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (*HKFRS"} which were generally affective on ar after 1st January, 2005 HKICPA
may In the future 1Issue new and revised standards and interpretations In addition, interpretations on the apphcation
of the HKFRS will continue to develop These factors may require the Group to adopt new accounting policies The
adoption of new accounting palicies or new HKFRS might or could have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
position or results of operations

Outbreak of Highly Contagious Disease

In 2003, there was an outbreak of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome ("SARS”) in Hong Kong, the Mainland and other
places The SARS outbreak had a significant adverse impact on the economies of the affected areas There can be no
assurance that there will nct be another significant global outbreak of a severe communicable disease such as avian

influenza If such an outbreak were to occur, it may have a matenal adverse iImpact on the operations of the Group and

its results of operations may suffer
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RISK FACTORS

The Group's Financial Condition or Results of Operations are affected by those of
the Hongkong Electric Group

The Group owns approximately 38 8 per cent of the Hongkong Electric Group which operates in Hong Kong and

has nvestments in different countries and places Hence the financial condition and results of aperations of the
Hongkong Electnic Group may be affectad by the local market conditions and the econemy of Hong Kong as well as
the places where s Investrnents are located The Group's financial condition and results of operations are matenally
affected by the financial condition and results of operations of the Hongkong Electric Group In additien, the core
businesses of the Hongkang Electnic Group are different from those of the Group, and as a result, the Group 1s indirectly
exposed to the nsks facing the Hongkong Electric Group

Besides, the operations of the Hongkong Electric Group are subject to a scheme of control agreed with the Hong Kong
Government which provides for a permitted lavel of sarnings based principally on a return on therr capital investment
In electneity generation, transmission and distnbution assets The scheme of control was renewed with effect from

st January, 1994 untif 31st December, 2008 There can be no assurance that changes to or abolition of the scheme of
control in the future will not adversely affect the Hongkong Electnic Group's (and hence the Greup’s) financial condition
and results of operations

Past Performance and Forward Looking Statements

The performance and the results of operations of the Group during the past years as contaned in this Annual Report are
histerical in nature and past performance can be no guarantee of future results of the Group  This Annual Report may
contain forward-looking statements and opinicns that invalve nsks and uncertanties Actual results may differ materially
from expectations discussed In such forward-looking statements and opinions  Neither the Group nor the Directors,
employees or agents of the Group assume (a) any obligation to correct or update the forward-looking statements or
opinions contained in this Annual Report, and (b) any lability in the event that any of the forward-looking statements or

opinions does not matenalse or turns out to be Incorrect
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are pleased to present shareholders with the annual report togsther with the audited financial staterments
of the Greup for the year ended 31st December, 2006

Principal Activities

The Group’s principal activities during the year are development, nvestment and operation of infrastructure businesses
i Hong Kong, the Mainland, Australa and the United Kingdom

Results and Dividends

Results of the Groug for the year ended 31st December, 2008 are set out In the consolidated income statement an
page 104

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dvidend of HK$0 75 per share which, together with the intenim
dividend of HK$0 25 per share paid on 29th September, 2008, makes the total dvidend of HK$1 00 per share for the

year

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leasehold Land

Movements in the Group's property, piant and equipment and leasehold land during the year are set out In notes 17 and
19 to the financial statements on pages 130 to 132

Reserves

Details of changas in the reserves of the Group are set out In nate 34 1o the financial statements on page 152

Group Financial Summary

Results, assets and labilities of the Group for the last ten years are summanised on pages 2 and 3

Properties

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are set out in Appendix 4 on page 164

ANNUAL REPORT 2006 a9




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors

.

The Directors of the Company n office at the date of this report are listed on page 174 and ther biographical information

1S set out on pages 38 to 43
On 1st December, 2006, Mr Andrew John Hunter was appointed as Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer

Mr Kwan Bing Sing, Enc will retire as Deputy Managing Director and Executive Direclor of the Company on
31st March, 2007

The Company's Bye-laws provides that any Director appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and shali then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting Accordingly, Mr Andrew John Hunter being the Director so appointed, shall hold office unti
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer imself for re-election

Further, in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws, the Directors of the Company (including Non-executive Directors)
shall be subject to retirerent by rotation at each annual genaral meeting Accordingly, Mr Li Tzar Kuol, Victor,

Mr Kam Hing Lam, Mr Ip Tak Chuen, Edmaond, Mrs Chow Woo Mo Fong, Susan and Mr Frank John Sixt wall retire
from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-slection at the forthcoming annual general meeting

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3 13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Secunties on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence
gudelines set out n Rule 3 13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31st December, 2006, the interests or short positions of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company ar any of its associated carporations fwithin the meaning of
Part XV of the Secunties and Futures Crdinance (*SFO™) which were notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Dvisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positicns which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFQO), or which were recorded

In the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant 1o
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the Model Code for Secunties Transactions by Directors adopted by the Company (the "Model Code”), to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows

{1} Long Positions in Shares

Number of Qrdinary Shares
Approximate

Name of Name of Personal Famity  Corporate Other % of
Company Director Capacity Interests  Interests Interests Interests Total  Shareholding
Gompany U Tzar Kucr, Beneficiary of trusts - - - 1912108945 1912108845 B4 82%

Victor {Note 1)

KamHnglam  Beneficia! owner 100,000 - - - 100000 0004%
Hutchison L Tzar Kuoy, Interest of controlled - - 1,086,770 2141608773 2142785543 50 26%
Whampoa Victor coporatons & iNota 3) {Note 2}
Limited benalicary of trusts

KamHnglam  Beneficial ownsr 60,000 - - - 60,000 0001%

Fek Kin Ning Interest of controllad - - 4,310,875 - 4,310 875 010%

Canning corporaiion {Note §)

ChowWooMo  Benefical owner 150 000 - - - 150 000 0003%

Fong, Susan

Frank John St Beneficial owner 50,000 - - - 50,000 0001%

LanHong Tsung,  Beneficial owner 20,000 - - - 20,000 00004%

Dawd

Lee Puling, Beneficial owner 38500 - - - 38 500 00009%

Angeling

George Cotn Beneficial owner 40 000 9900 - 950 100 1,000 000 002%

Magnus interest of child or spouse {Note 6)

& founder & beneficiary
of a discretionary trust

Hongkong Blecine L Tzar Kuoi, interest of ¢hild or spouse - 151,000 - 829595612 829750612 3888%
Holdings bimited Victor & beneficary of trusts {Note 4]

Lee PuLing Beneficial owner 8,800 - - - 8 800 00004%

Angelina
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures

(Cont’d)

(1)  Long Positions in Shares {Cont’d)

Number of Ordinary Shares
Approximate
Name of Name of Personal Family  Corporate Other % of
Company Director Capacity Interests  Interests Interests Interests Total Shareholding
Hutchison Fok Kin Ning, interest of controfled - - 5000000 - 5 000,000 007%
Harbowr Ring Cannirg COMOration Note §)
Limited
Hutchison Fok KinNng Beneficial owner & 4,100 000 - 1,004 000 - 5,100 000 075%
Telecommunicatons  Canning interest of controled {Note 5)
(Australia) Limted corporation
Frank John St Beneficial owner 1,000,000 - - - 1 000,000 015%
(2} Long Positions in Underlying Shares
Number of Underlying Shares
Name of Name of Personal Family Corporats Other
Company Director Capacity Interests Interests Interests Interests Total
Company L Tzar Kuoi, Beneficiary of trusts - - - 31,644 803 31,644 803
Victor {Note 7)
Hutchison Whampoa L1 Tzar Kuo, Baneficiary of trusts - - - 18613202  18613,202
Limited Victor {Note 8)
LanHong Tsung,  Beneficial owner 23 484 - - - 23 484
Dawd (Note 9)
Hangkong Electric L1 Tzar Kuol, Beneficiary of trusts - - - 20990201 20,990 201
Hoidings Lumiied Vigtor {Note 10}
Hutchison Fok Kin Ning, Beneficial owner & 134 000 - 1,340,001 - 1,474 001
Telecommunications Canning interest of controlled {Note 5) {Note 11)

(Australia) Lmited

corporation
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{3)  Short Posihions in Underlying Shares

Number of Underlying Shares

Name of Name of Personal Famuty Corporate Other
Company Director Capactty Interests Interests Interests Interests Total
Company Lt Tzar Kuoi, Beneficiary of trusts - - - 31644801 31644 801
Victor {Note 7(b))
Hutchison Whampoa L Tzar Kuoy, Beneficiary of trusts - - - 18,613,202 18613202
Limited Victor [Nota 8)
Hongkong Electnc Li Tzar Kuol, Beneficiary of trusts - - - 20990,201 20980 20
Holdings Limited Victor {Note 10)
4) Long Positions in Debentures
Amount of Debentures
Name of Name of Personal Family Corporate Other
Company Director Capacity Interesis Interests Interests Interests Total
Hutchison Whampoa L Tzar Kuol, Interest of contralled - - US$12,000,000 - US$12,000,000
International {01/11) Victor corparation 7% Notes 7% Notes
Limited due 2011 due 2011
{Note 3)
Hutchison Whampoz Lt Tzar Kuo, Interest of controlled - - USS21,000000 - US%21,000 000
International (03/13} Victar corparation 8 5% Notes 6 5% Notes
Limited due 2013 due 2013
{Note 3}
Fok Kin Ning, Interest of controlled - - USS2 506 000 - US$2,500 000
Canning corporation 6 5% Notes 6 5% Notes
due 2013 due 2013
{Note 5)
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Debentures (Cont’d)

(4) Long Positions in Debentures {(Cont’d)

Amount of Debentures

Name of Name of Personal Family Corporate Other
Company Director Capacity Interests Interests Interests Interests Total
Hutchison Whampoa L1 Tzar Kuol Interest of controlled - - US%8 000,000 - US%8000 000
International {03/33) Victor carporation 6 25% Notes 6 25% Notes
Limited dus 2014 due 2014
[Note 3)
Interest of controlled - - US$15,000,000 - US$15,000,000
corporation 7 45% Notes 7 45% Notes
due 2033 due 2033
Note 3)
Fok Kt Ning Interest of controlled - - USS32 500,000 - US$2500000
Canning corporation 5 45% Notes 5 45% Notes
due 2010 due 2010
(Note 5)
Interest of controlled - ~ US3$2 500 000 - US$2,500 000
caorporation B 25% Notes 6 25% Notes
due 2014 due 2014
{Note 5)
Interest of contralled - - USS2,000 000 - 15%2,000000
corporation 7 45% Notes 7 45% Noes
due 2033 due 2033
{Note 5)
Hutchison Whampoa  Fok Kin Ning, Interest of controlled - - Euro 4,600 000 - Euro 4,600,000
Finance (05) Canning corporation 4 125% Notss 4 125% Notes
Limited due 2015 due 2015
{Note 5)
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Notes

The 1,912,109,945 shares In the Company comprise 1,906,681 945 shares held by a subsichary of Hutchison Whampea Limited
("HWL’) and 5,428,000 shares held by L1 Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited (! TUT17) as trustee of The Lt Ka-Shing
Unity Trust (‘'UT1")

The discretionary beneficiaries of each of The LI Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust {‘DT1") and another discretionary trust
{('DT2" are, inter alia, Mr L1 Tzar Kuoy, Victor, his wife and children, and Mr Li Tzar Kai, Richard Each of Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trustee Corporation Limited (“TDT 17, which 1s the trustee of DT1) and Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp bimited ( TDT2", which s
the trustee of DT2) holds units in UT1 but 1s not entitled to any interest or share in any particular property comprsing the trust
assets of the said unit trust TUT1 as trustee of UT1 and its related companies in which TUT1 as trustee of UT1 1s entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at ther general meetings ("TUT1 related companies™
hold mare than one-third of the 1ssued share capital of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH"} Certain subsidianes of CKH
In turn together hold more than one-third of the tssued share capital of HWL

The entire 1ssued share capital of TUT1 and of the irustees of DT1 and OT2 are owned by L1 Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited
("Unity Holdce ") Each of Mr Lt Ka-shing, Mr Li Tzar Kuol, Victor and Mr L1 Tzar Kai, Richard 1s interested in one-third of the
entire 1ssued share capital of Unity Holdco TUT 1 1s only interested in the shares of CKH by reason only of its obligation and
powaer 10 hold interests in those shares in its ordinary course of business as trustee and when performing its functions as
trustee, exercises Its power to hold interests in the shares of CKH independently without any reference to Unity Holdco or any
of Mr Li Ka-shing, Mr L1 Tzar Kuol, Victor and Mr Li Tzar Kai, Richard as a holder of tha shares of Unity Holdco as aforesaid

By wirtue of the above and as a discretionary beneficiary of each of DT1 and OT2 and as a dwector of CKH Mr L Tzar Kuo,
Victor 1s taken to have a duty of disclosure in relation to the shares of CKH held by TUT1 as trustee of UT1 and TUT1 related
companes the shares of HWL held by the subsidianes of CKH and the shares of the Company held by each of the subsidiary
of HWL and TUT1 as trustee of UTt under the SFQ as a Director of the Company Although Mr Lt Tzar Kar, Richard 1s
interested i one-third of the entire 1Issued share capital of Unity Holdco and 1s a discretionary beneficiary of each of DT1 and
DT2, he 1s not a director of CKH and has no duty of disclosure in relation to the shares of CKH held by TUT1 as trustee

of UTt1 and TUT1 related companigs undsr the SFO
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Notes (Cont'd}
2 The 2,141,698,773 shares in HWL comprise

{a) 2,130,202,773 shares held by certain subsidianes of CKH By wirtue of the interests in shares of CKH n ralation 10
which Mr L1 Tzar Kuai, Victor has a duty of disclosure under the SFO in the 1ssued share capital of CKH as daescribed in
Note 1 above and as a Director of the Company Mr L Tzar Kuor, Victor is taken 1o have a duty of disclosure in relation
to the said shares of HWI. under the SFQO, and

{) 11,496,000 shares held by L1 Ka-Shing Castle Trustee Company Limited (“TUT3"} as trustee of The L Ka-Shing Castle
Trust ("UT3") The discretionary beneficianes of each of the two discretionary trusts ("DT3" and “DT4") are inter alia,
Mr L1 Tzar Kuoi, Victor, his wife and children, and Mr L Tzar Kal, Richard Each of the trustees of DT3 and DT4 holds
units In UT3 but 1s not entitled tc any interest or share in any particular property comprising the trust assets of the said

unit trust

The entire 1ssued share capuital of TUT3 and the trustess of DT3 and DT4 are owned by LI Ka-Shing Castle Holdings
Limited (“Castle Holdco®) Each of Mr LI Ka-shing, Mr Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor and Mr L1 Tzar Kai, Richard is interested in
one-third of the entire 1Issued share capital of Castle Holdco TUT3 1s only interested in the shares of HWL by reason
only of its abligation and power to hold intarests in those shares in its ordinary course of business as trustee and, when
performing its funciions as trustee, exercises its power to hold interests in the shares of KWL independently without
any reference to Castle Holdco or any of Mr Li Ka-shing, Mr Ls Tzar Kug, Victor and Mr L Tzar Kai, Richard as a
holder of the shares of Castle Holdco as aforesad

By virtue of the above and as a discretionary bengficiary of each of DT3 and DT4 and as a director of HWL

Mr Li Tzar Kuol, Victor is taken to have a duty of disclosure in relation to the said shares of HWL held by TUT3 as
trustee of UT3 under the SFQ as a Director of the Company Although Mr 1 Tzar Kar, Richard 1s interested in one-thurd
of tha entre 1ssued share capital of Castle Holdco and is a discretionary beneficiary of each of DT3 and DT4, he i1s not
a Director of the Company and has no duty of disclosure in relation to the shares of HWL held by TUT3 as trustee of
UT3 under the SFO

3 Such interests are held by certan companies of which Mr Lt Tzar Kuor, Victor 1s interested in the entire 1ssued share capital
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By virtue of being a Director of the Company and his deemed interest in those shares of the Company as described in
Note 1 above, Mr Li Tzar Kuo, Victor 1s taken to have a duty of disclosure in relation to those shares of Hongkong Electnic
Heoldings Limited {*Hongkong Electric”) held thraugh the Company under the SFO

These interests are held by a company which1s equally owned by Mr Fok Kin Ning, Canning and his wife

Such interests are Indirectly held by a trust of which Mr George Colin Magnus 1s the settlor and a discretionary beneficiary
Such underlying shares of the Company ara held by an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CKH compnsing
{a) 2 underlying shares by wirtue of the HK$300,000,000 capiial guaranteed notes due 2009, and

() 31,644,801 underlying shares by wirtue of the HK Dollar equity-linked notes due 2007 ssued under
HK$10,000,000,000 retail nete ssuance programme

By virtue of the interests in the shares of CKH taken to have by Mr L) Tzar Kuoi, Victor under the SFO as described in
Note 1 above and as a Director of the Company, Mr L1 Tzar Kuai, Victor 18 taken to have a duty of disclosure in relation to
the said interest and shart pasition in the underlying shares of the Company under the SFQO

Such underlying shares of BWL are held by an indirect wholty-owned subsidiary of CKH compnsing

(a) 10,483,201 underlying shares by virtua of the HK Dollar equity-inked notes due 2007 1ssued under
HK$10,000,000,000 retall note 1ssuance programme, and

{b) 8 150,001 underlying shares by viriue of the HK Dollar equity-linked notes due 2008 1ssued under
HK$10,000,000,000 retall note 1ssuance programme

By virtue of the interests N the shares of CKH taken to have by Mr L Tzar Kuol, Victor under the SFO as described in
Note 1 above and as & Director of the Company, Mr LI Tzar Kuo, Victor 1s taken to have a duty of disclosure in relation to
the said interest and short pesition in the underlying shares of HWL under the SFO

Such underlying shares in HWL are denved from the US$200,000 Quanto Range Accrual Equity Linked Note dus 2008
1ssued by Macquare Bank Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2006 57




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (Cont’d)

Notes (Cont'd}

10 Such underlying shares of Hongkong Electnc are held by an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CKH by wirtue of the HK Dollar
equity-inked notses due 2007 1ssued under HK$10,000,000 000 retail note 1ssuance programme

By virtue of the interests in the shares of CKH taken to have by Mr Li Tzar Kuai, Victor under the SFO as described In
Note 1 above and as a Dwector of the Company, Mr L1 Tzar Kuor Victor 1s taken to have a duty of disclosure in relation to the
sad Iinterest and short position 1n the underlying shares of Hongkong Elecinic under the SFO

11 Such underlying shares in Hutchison Telecemmunications {Australia) Limited are denved from the fisted and physically settled
5 5% unsecured convertible notes due 2007 1ssued by Hutchison Telecommunications (Austraha) Limited

Mr Li Tzar Kuol, Victar, by virtue of beng a Director of the Company and his interests in the share capital of the Company
as a discretionary beneficiary of certain discretionary irusts as described in Note 1 above, 18 deemed o be interested
In those secunties of subsidianies and associated companies of the Company held through the Company and in those
secunties of the subsidianes of HWL held through HWL under the SFQ

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives of the Cofmpany had, as at 31st December, 2008,
any interests or short positions I the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divistons 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO {including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFQ), or which were recorded in the register reguired to be kept
oy the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

Ne other contracts of significance to which the Company or a subsidiary was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a matenal interest subsisted at the balance sheet date or at any time during the year

At no tme durng the year was the Company or subsidiary a party to any arrangements which enabled any Director of
the Company 1o acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares In or debentures of the Company aor of any other
body corporate

None of the Directors of the Company has any service contract with the Company or any of its subsidianies
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Interests and Short Positions of Shareholders

So far as 1s known to any Directors or chief executives of the Company, as at 31st December, 2006, shareholders (other

than Directors or chief executives of the Company} who had interests or short positions in the shares or undertying

shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of

Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded n the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of

the SFQ were as follows

{1) Long Positions of Substantial Shareholders in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

Number of Number of Approximate
Ordinary Undertying % of
Name Capacity Shares Shares Total Shareholding
Hutchison Infrastructure Beneficial owner 1,908,681,945 - 1 606,681,945 84 58%
Holdings Limited {(Note 1
Hutchison International Interest of controlled 1906,681,945 - 1,906 681 945 84 58%
Limited corporation (Note 1)
Hutchisen Whampoa Interest of controllad 1906 681 945 - 1,806,681,945 B4 58%
Limited corporations {Note #)
Cheung Kong Interest of controiled 1 906,681 945 31,644 803 1938 326,748 85 98%
{Holdings) Limited corporations {Note 1} (Note vi) ‘
L1 Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Trustee 1,812,109 945 31,644,803 1943754 748 86 22%
Company Limited {Note w} {Note v
as trustea of The
L1 Ka-Shing Unity Trust
L1 Ka-Shing Unity Trusiee Trustee & 1,912,109 945 31 844,803 1 943,754 748 86 22%
Corporation Limited beneficiary {Note v) (Note i)
as trustee of The of & trust
L1 Ka-Shing Unity
Discretionary Trust
L1 Ka-Shing Unity Trustee & 1,912,109,945 31644 803 1,843,754 748 86 22%
Trustcorp Limited benaficiary [Note v) {Note v
as trustes of another of a trust
discretionary trust
Lt Ka-shing Founder of 1,812,109 945 31,644,803 1,943,754 748 86 22%
discretionary {Note v) (Note v)
trusts
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(2)  Short Positions of Substantial Shareholders in the Underlying Shares of the Company

Number of
Name Capacity Underlying Shares
Cheung Kong {Holdings) Limited Interest of controlled corporation 31,644,801
{Note vi(lz))
LI Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited Trustee 31,644,801
as trustee of The L1 Ka-Shing Unity Trust {Note vi{b))
L Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Lirmited Trustee & benehciary of a trust 31,844,801
as trustee of The Li Ka-Shing Unity {Note w(b))

Discrationary Trust
Lt Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Lirmited Trustee & beneficiary of a trust 31,644,801
as trustee of another discretionary trust (Note wi(b))
L1 Ka-shing Founder of discretionary trusts 31644 801
{Note wib)}

Notes

1 1,906,681,945 shares of the Company are held by Hutchison Infrastructure Holdings Limited, a subsichary of HWL Its interests
are duplicated n the interests of HWL in the Company descnbed in Note i below

[ HWL 15 deemed to be interested in the 1,906,681 945 shares of the Company referred to in Note 1 above as it holds more than
one-third of the 1Issued shara capital of Hutchison International Limited  which holds mare than one-third of the 1ssued share
capital of Hutchison Infrastructure Holdings Limited

Il CKH 1s deemed to be interested in the 1,906,681,945 shares of the Company referred to in Note 1 above as certan
subsidiaries of CKH hold more than one-third of the issued share capital of HWL

W TUT1 as trustes of UT1 15 deemed to be interested in those shares of the Company described in Note m above as TUT1 as
trustee of UT1 and TUT1 related companies hold mare than one-third of the 1ssued share capital of CKH and TUT1 as trustee
of UT1 holds 5,428 G0Q shares of the Company
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Al

By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr Li Ka-shing, being the settlor and may being regarded as a founder of each of DT and
DT2 for the purpose of the SFO, TDT1 as trustee of OT1 and TDT2 as trustee of DT2 1s deemed 1o be nterested in the
same block of shares TUT1 as trustee of UT1 is deemed to be interested 1n as referred to in Note v above as all issued and
outstanding units N UT1 are held by TDT1 as trustee of DT1 and by TDTZ2 as trustee of DT2 More than one-third of the issued
share capital of TUT1 and of the trustees of the said discretionary trusts are owned by Unity Holdeo Mr LI Ka-shing owns
one-third of the 1ssued share capital of Unity Holdco

Suech underlying shares of the Company are held by an indirect whally-owned subsidiary of GKH comprnsing
(a) 2 underlying shares by virtue of the HK$300,000,000 capital guaranteed notes due 2009, and

(b) 31,844,801 underlying shares by virtue of the HK Dollar equity-linked notes due 2007 1ssued under
HK$10,000,000,000 retall note 1Issuance programme

By virtue of the SFC each of Mr Li Ka-shing, TDT1, TDT2 and TUT1 15 deesmed to be interested in the same block of interest
and short position in the 31,644,803 underlying shares and 31,644 801 underlying shares of the Company respectively heid
by CKH as descnbed in Note v above

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2006, the Company has not been notified by any persons (other than

Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of

the Company which would fal} to be disclosed to the Company under the prowvisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of

the SFO, ar which were recorded i the register reguired to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO

Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions of the Group constituted continung connected transactions (“Continuing Connected

Transactions”) under the Listing Rules dunng the financial year ended 31st December, 2006

(@)

A sponsors/shareholders’ undertaking has been provided by each of CKH and HWL 1n relation to the loan
facilities in relation to the Zhuhal Power Plant Pursuart to the sponsors/sharehclders’ undertaking, each of
CKH and BWL shall be saverally ¥able for 50 per cent of certain obligations of the foreign party {the “Zhuhai
Foreign Party”) to the PRC project company undertaking the Zhuhar Power Plant The Zhuhar Foreign Party,
which is an ndirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has a 45 per cent Interest In the PRC project
company Pursuant to a deed of counter-indemnity given by the Company n favour of CKH and HWL, the
Company has agreed with each of CKH and HWL. to meet all future funding obligations of sach of them which
may be required under such sponsors/shareholders’ undertaking and to counter-indemnify each of CKH and
HWL in respect of any sum provided by each of them and generally n respect of each of ther labilibies and
obligations under such sponsors/shareholders’ underaking
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o) Cn 16th December, 2005, the Company had entered into a tenancy agreerment with Turbe Top Limited
(“Turbo Tep”), which is a connected person of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules by virtus of
ts being a wholly-owned subsichary of HWL, which i turn 1s a substantial shareholder of the Company, in respect
of the lease of Office Unit 1202, 12th Floor, Cheung Kong Center, 2 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong with a
lettable floor area of approximately 10,079 square feet as the principal business office of the Group in Hong Kong
for a term of three years commencing from 1st September, 2005 to 31st August, 2008 at a monthly rental of
HK$360,829, exclusive of Government rates and other charges The aggregate rent and service charges payable
under the tenancy agreement ars subject to an annual cap of HK$5,355,000 taking into account of the possible
adjustment on the service charges During the year, HK$4,559,748 has been paid/payable by the Company to

Turbo Top pursuant to the aforesaid tenancy agreement

On 12th August, 1986, the Stock Exchange granted conditional wavers to the Company from stnct compliance with
the disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules in respect of the above transaction
In paragraph {a} on, Inter alia, a condition that brief details of the transaction shall be disclosed in the Company's
subsequent annual report for financial years :n which the transaction 1s subsisting An announcement (the
*Anncuncement”) in respect of the above transaction in paragraph (b) was puchshed in the newspapers on

19th December, 2005 in accordance with the Listing Rules

The Continuing Connected Transactions have been reviewed by the Independent Non-executive Directors The
Independent Non-executive Directars have confirmed that for the year 2006 the Continuing Connected Transactions
have been enterad into () in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company, (1) ether on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms avalable to (or from) Independent third parties,

and {u) n accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are far and reasonable and in the
interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole

Pursuant to Rule 14A 38 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged the auditors of the Company to perform
certan factual finding procedures in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions of the Group N accordance with
the Hong Kong Standard on Related Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding
Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Cerbified Public Accountants The auditors have reported
iher factual indings on these procedures 10 the Board of Directors and confirmed that for the year 2006 the Continuing
Connected Transactions () have received the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, and (i) have been
entered Into N accordance with the relevant agreements governing the transactions, and the Continuing Connectad

Transaction in paragraph (b) above has not exceeded the cap as disclosed in the Announcement
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Dunng the year, 35 4 per cent of the Group's sales were attnbutable to the Group's five largest customers with the
largest customer accounting for 15 3 per cent of the Group's sales The Group's purchases attnbutabie to the Group’s
five largest supplers were less than 30 per cent of the Group's purchases

For the year ended 31st December, 2006, Alhance Construction Matenals Limited of which the Company 1s interested
N 50 per cent of the 13sued share capital and Mr Ip Tak Chuen, Edmend, Director of the Company, acts as a Director,
was one of the Group's five largest customers Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates ar any
sharehclder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5 per cent of the Company’s issued share capital)
has any interest in the Group’s five largest customers

Competing Business Interests of Directors

During the year, the interests of Directors in the businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group (the “Competing Business™) as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules were as follows

(a) Core Business Activities of the Group
M Development, investment and operation of energy infrastructure,
{2) Development, investment and operation of transportation infrastructure,
{3) Development, mvestment and operation of water infrastructure,
{4) Development, investment and operaticn and commercialisation of infrastructure related business,
(5) Investment holding and praject management
6) Securities nvestment, and

(7) Information technology, e-commerce and new technology
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(b} Interests in Competing Business

Name of Director

Name of Company

Competing Business

L1 Tzar Kuo, Victor

Kam Hing Lam

Ip Tak Chuen Edmond

Fgk Kin Ning, Canning

Kwan Bing Sing, Enc

Cheung Kong {Heldings) Limited

Hutchison Whampoa Lmited
Hongkoeng Electric Holdings Limited
CK Life Sciences Int'l , (Holdings) Inc

Cheung Kong (Holdings) Lirnited
Hutchison Whampoa Limited
Hangkang Electric Holdings Limited
CK Life Sciences Int'l , (Holdings) Inc

Spark Infrastructure Group

Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited
CK Life Sciences Int'l , {Holdings) Inc

TOM Group Limited

CATIC International Holdings Limited

Excel Technology International Holdings
Limited

Shougang Concerd International
Enterprises Company Limited

The Ming An (Holdings} Cempany Limited

Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited

Hutchison Whampoa bmited

Hongkong Electnc Holdings Limited

Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited

Hutchisan Telacommunications
International Limited

Spark Infrastructure Group
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Nature of Interest (Note}
Managing Director and (&), B} & (7)
Deputy Charrman
Deputy Charrman (1), 6), B & (7)
Executive Direclor {13, (6), (B) & (7}
Chairman (6} & (7)
Deputy Managing Director 5), BY & (7}
Executive Diector {1}, (5), (B) & (7}
Executive Director (1), B), B & (7}
President and B) & (7}
Chief Executive Officer
Non-executive Director (13 &(5)
Deputy Managing Dwector (5), (6} & (7}
Senior Vice President and {B) & {7}
Chief Investment Officer
Non-executive Director 5 BY&(7)
Non-executive Diractor (5} & (6)
Non-sxecutive Director ) B &{7)
Non-axecutive Director (1}, (5) & (6)
Non-executive Director (5) & (6)
Non-executive Director 5}, B) & (7)
Group Managing Director (1), {5}, 6 & (7)
Chairman (1), 6) 8)&(7)
Chairman {7)
Chairman (7)
Non-executive Director (11 & (5)

fresigned on 15t December 2006}




Name of Director

Name of Company

Nature of Interest

Competing Busmess
{Note)

Andrew John Hunter

Chow Woo Mo Fong,
Susan

Frank John Sixt

Tso Kal Sum

Les Pui Ling, Angelina

Gecorge Colin Magnus

Hongkong Electnc Holdings Limited
Spark Infrastructure Group

Hutchison Whampoa Limited

Hongkong Electne Hoidings Limited

TOM Group Limited

Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited

Hutchison Telecommunications
International Limited

TOM Oniing Ing

Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited

Hutchison Whampoa Limited

Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited

Hutchiseon Telecommunications
International Limited

TOM Group Limited

TOM Online Inc

Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited

TOM Group Lirmited

Cheung Kong {Holdings) Limitad
Hutchison Whampoa Limited
Hongkong Electric Holdings Limited

Executive Director
Non-gxecutive Director

Deputy Group Managing
Director

Executive Director

Non-exacutive Director

Executive Director

Alternate Director

Alternate Diractor

Non-axecutive Director
Group Finance Director
Exacutive Director

Non-executive Director

Chairman
Chairman

Group Managing Director

Non-executive Director

Non-executive Diractor
Non-gxecutive Director
Non-executive Director

{1}, (). ©) & (7)
(1 &)

{1). 6). 6) & (7]
) (6) &(7]
(), 6 &(7)

(1).16), ) & (7)
(1. 18), (6) & (7)

Note Such businesses may be made through subsidiaries associated companies or by way of other forms of mvestmants

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directers 1s interested in any business apart from the Group's businesses which

competes or 1s likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with businesses of the Group
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisicns for pre-smptive nghts under the Company’s Bye-laws afthough there are no restnctions aganst
such nghts under the laws of Bermuda

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares dunng the year ended 31st December, 2006 Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidianes has purchased or scld any of the Company’s shares during the year

Pubhc Fioat

As announced by the Company on 8th January, 1997 and 17th February, 1997, the Stock Exchange granted a
walver from stnict compliance with Rule 8 08 of the Listing Rules 1o the Company on 8th January, 1997 subject to
approximately not less than 15 2 per cent of the issued share capital of the Company being held in public hands
Based on information avadable and within the knowledge of the Directors, the obligation has been comphied with

Donations

Donations made by the Group during the year amounied to HK$165,000

Disclosure under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules

The following information 1s disclosed in accordance with Rules 13 21 and 13 22 of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules

(1) The Group has entered into a syndicated loan facility agreement of HK$3 8 bilhon, of which the whole amount
was drawn as at 31st December, 2006 The facility will mature i 2007 Under the prowvision of the loan
agreement, it 1s an event of default if HWL {the Company's controlling shareholder) ceases to own {directly or
indirectly) at least 35 per cent of the 1ssued share capital of the Company The obligaticn has been complied
with

(2} A sponsors/sharegholders’ undertaking referred to under the section headed *Continuing Connectad
Transactions” has been provided by HWL, the Zhuhai Foreign Party and the other parties in relation to two loan
faciities of US$125 5 million and US$670 millicn granted to the PRC project company undsrtaking the Zhuhai
Power Plant The two loans with the outstanding amounts of US$18 9@ milion and US$332 4 milion as at
31st December, 2006, are repayable by installments with the final repayment due in 2008 and 2012 respectively
It 15 an event of default for both faciities iIf CKH and HWL collectively own directly or indirectly less than
51 per cent of the shareholding in the Zhuhai Foreign Party The obligation has been complied with
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The Group has entered into a long term syndicated facility agreement of A3400 million with the loan balance of
A%209 9 million remained cutstanding as at 31st December, 2006 The facility will mature in 2008 Under the
provision of the loan agreement, # 15 an event of default f HWL ceases to own (directly or indirectly) at isast

30 per cent of the 1ssued share capital of the Company The cbligat:on has been complied with

The Group has entered inte a long term syndicated faciity agreement of A$300 million, of which the whole
amount was drawn as at 31st December, 2008 The facility will mature in 2009 Under the provision of the loan
agreement, it 1s an event of default f HWL ceases to own (directly or indrrectly) at least 30 per cent of the 1ssued

share capital of the Company The obligation has been complied with

As at 31st December, 2006, the Group's inancial assistance to certain affllated companies and its guarantee
given for & facility granted to an affilated company together in aggregate exceeded the assets ratio of 8 per cent
A combined balance sheet of the affilated companies as at 31st December, 2006 1s set out below

HK$ million

Non-current assets 63 525
Current assets 3970
Current kabilies {8 138)
Non-current habilites (56 101)
Net assets 3,258
Share capital 1,085
Reserves 2,173
Capital and reserves 3258

As at 31st December, 2008, the consolidated attnbutable interest of the Group in these affillated companies
amounted to HK$7,283 million
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Audit Committee

The Group's annual report for the year ended 31st December, 2006 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee
information on the work of Audit Committee and its composition are set out n the Corporate Governance Report on
pagss %0 to 85

Auditors

The financial statements for the year have been audited by Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohrnatsu whao retire and offer

themseives for re-appointment
+- *

On behal Y the Board

Kam Hing Lam
Group Managing Director

Hong Keng, 15th March, 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.
o)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF CHEUNG KONG INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED
{incarporatad in Barmuda with imited habiity)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited {the

Company”) and its subsidianes (collectively referred fo as the “Group”) set oul on pages 104 to 163, which
compnse the consolidalad balance shast as al 31st December, 2006, and the consohdated income statement,
the consolidated statement of recognisad income and expanse and the consohdated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notas

Directors’ respansibiiity for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of tha Caompany are responsible for the preparation and the true and far presentation of these
consoldated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 1ssued by
the Hong Kong Insttute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance This respensibility sncludes desigrung, implementing and mamntaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and far presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from matenal nusstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropnate accounting
pohicies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonabla in the circumstances

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibiity is to express an opinion on thase consolldated financial statements based on our audit and
to report cur gpinion solaly to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Acl
and for no other purpose Wa do not assume responsioility towards or accep! hability to any other person for
the contents of this report We conducted our audtt in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Audriting
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and pian and perform the augi to obtain reasonabla assurance as 10 wheiher the
consolidated financial statements are free from matertal misstatemsnt,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures In the
consolidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on tha auditor's jJudgment, including the
assessment of the nsks of malenal misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 1o
fraud or error In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control reievant 10 the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presantation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinicn on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained i1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion

Opinion

in our oplnloﬁ,‘the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group

as at 31st December, 2006 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

Dot Jordin]sloats—

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

15th March, 2007
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

far the year ended 31st December

HK$ million Notes 2006 2005
Group turmover 1,822 2,247
Shars of turnover of jontly controlled entities 2,977 2,503
4,793 4,750
Group turnover 6 1,822 2,247
Cther ncome 7 756 592
Operaling costs 8 {1.587) (1.729)
Finance costs 9 {523) {732)
Gain on disposals of associates 10 - 3,763
imparment losses 1 (279) (1.727)
Share of results of associates 2,751 3,183
Share of resuits of jontly controfied enthes 737 mn
Profit before taxation 12 3,677 5,908
Taxation 13 {4) (67)
Profit for the year 14 3,673 5,841
Attnibutable to
Sharsholders of the Company 3670 6,007
Minonty interests 3 (168)
3,673 5841
Earmings per share 15 HKS1t 63 HK$2 66
Dividends 16
Intenm dwdend paid 564 541
Proposed iinal dividend 1,690 1.596
2,254 2137

CHEUMNG KONG INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDINGS LIMIYED




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

as at 31st December

HK$ milhon Notes 2006 2005
Property, plant and equipment 17 991 919
Investment properties 18 130 59
Leasehold land 19 301 326
Interests in associates 20 29,382 26,911
Interests in jointly controlled entiies 21 4,238 4,337
Interests in infrastructure project investments 22 490 579
Investmants in secunties 23 3,064 2,002
Dervative financial instruments 24 38 447
Goodwill 25 205 175
Other non-current assets 32(b) 13 9
Total non-cuirent assets 38,852 35,854
Inventones 26 99 105
Interests in infrastructure project investments 22 127 86
Dervative fihancial nstruments 24 369 12
Dabtors and prepayments 27 455 388
Bank balances @nd deposits 28 7,720 8,110
Total current agsets 8,770 8,701
Bank and other loans 29 3,813 11
Denvatwe financial nstruments 24 485 -
Credttors and accruals 30 1,245 1,105
Taxahon 105 105
Total current liabihties 5,648 1,221
Net current assets 3,122 7,480
Total assets less current habtlities ~ 41,974 43,334
Bank and other loans 29 5,614 9,045
Denvative financial mstruments 24 179 370
Deferred tax tabilitiss 3 401 362
Other non-current labilies 32(c) 15 21
Total non-current liabilities 6,109 9,798
Net assets 35,865 33,536
Rapresenting

Share caprtal 33 2,254 2,254
Reserves 34 33,570 31,244
Equity attnibutable to shareholders of the Company 35,824 33,498
Minonty interests 34 41 38
Total equity 35,865 33,538

o T

LI TZAR KUOI, VICTORZ
Director

15th March, 2007

Director

¥ W *
P TAK CHUEN, EDMOND ’L
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE

for the year ended 31st December

HK$ mifhion 2006 2005

Cumulative impact from adoption of Amendment

10 HKAS 19 (note 2(a)) {141) -
Surplus on revaluation of properties upon transfer to

investment properties 44 12
Gain/{Loss) from far value changes of avalable-for-sale

financial assels 42 (36)
(LossyGan from far value changes of denvatives designated

as effective cash flow hedges (147 323
Exchange differences on transiation of

financial statements of foreign operations 828 {360)
Actuanal gans of defined beneiit ratrement schemes 190 -
Net gav({loss) recognised directly in equity 816 &)
Reserves released upon chsposal of associales - 292)
Prafit for the year 3,673 5841
Totat recognised income and expenss for the year 4,488 5,488
Aftnbutable to,
Shareholders of the Company 4,486 5.654
Minofity interasts 3 (166)

4,489 5,488
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the yaar ended 31st December

HKS million Note 2006 2005
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated frorn operations 35 1,182 2,010
Incoma taxes pad {17) N
Net cash from operating activities 1,165 1,993
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {45) 77
Disposals of property, plant and equipment 12 45
Acquisihons of associates {1,194} {9.989)
Disposal of associates - 12,013
Advances o associates (90) B1
Repayments from associates 3 1
Acquisition of a jointly controlled antity (69) (581)
Repayments from jointly controllsd entiues 270 453
Disposal of an infrastructure project investment 115 196
Purchases of secunhes {837) {1,023}
Rapayments from finance lease debtors 4 a
Loan note repayments of stapled securnties 52 48
Owadends recelved from assoclates 2,350 1,604
intarest received 376 282
Finance lease income received 1 2
Net cash from investing activities 948 2,902
Net cash before financing activities 2,113 4,895
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank and other loans 23 747
Hepaymenits of bark and other ioans 113 {4,499)
Finance costs pag (353) (234)
Dmdends paidt {2,160} {1,826)
Dwdend pad to minonty shareholders of

a non wholly-owned subsidhary - (1]
Net cash utibsed in financing activities (2,503} {5,814}
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (390) (219
Cash and cash equivaients at 15! January 8,110 9,029
Cash and cash equivalants at 315t Dacember 7,720 8,110
Representing
Bank balances and deposits at 31st December 7,720 8110

ANNUAL REPORT 2006

107



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10a

General

The Company is a lmited hability company incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are isted on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Hong Kong Stock Exchangs”) The addresses of ils registered office and
pnngipa place of business are disclosed in the sectron headed Corporate information’ of the Group's Annual
Report The Directors consider that the Company's ullmate holding company 1s Hutchison Whampoa Limited,
a company incorporated in Hong Kong with imdec lability, the shares of which are listed on Hong Kong Stock
Exchange

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company

The Group's principai actvities are the development, nvestment and operation of infrastructure busnesses in
Hong Kong, Maniand China, Australia and the Untted Kingdom

Changes in Accounting Policies

In the current year, the Group has adopted a number of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporung
Standards (*HKFASs”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards ( HKASs") and Interpratations thereinafter collectively
referred to as “new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™ that
are effectiva 1o the Group for accounting penods beginning on or after 1st January, 2006 Except for tha changes
in accounting policies and presentaton as set cut below, the adoption of those new HKFRSs has no matenal
impacl on the Group's results and financlal posiion for the current or pnor years

(a) Employee Retirement Benefits

in the current year, the Group has adopted Amendment to HKAS 19 “Actuanal Gains and Losses, Group
Plans and Disclosures”, which provides an option to recognisa actuanal gans and losses of defined
beneht retrement plans n full in the penod ir which they occur, cutside profit or loss, n equty The Group
has elected to take the option to recognise all actuanal gains and losses of its defined benefit retirement

plans n equdy

Pror to 1st January, 2006, actuanal gams and losses which exceeded 10 per cent of the greater of the
present value of the Group's pension obligabons and the far valus of plan assels were recognised in the
ncome statement over the expected average remaining working Ives of the employees participating in the
plans
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i

2. Changes in Accounting Policies {(Cont'd)
(a3} Employee Retirement Benefits (Cont'd)

The change in accounting palicy has been applied prospectvely The man reason for not applyng
Amendment to HKAS 19 retrospectively 1s that the management considered the impact 15 immailenal and
15 not pracbcal to do so Cumulatve effects from the change on the Group's balances at 1sl January, 2006
include decraases In Interests in associates, other non-current assets and retained profits by HKS138
million, HK$3 million and HKS141 milion, respeciively,

{b) Fmancial Instruments - Investments in Securities

On 1st January, 2005, the Group adopted HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments Recognition and
Measurement” and re-designaled cartain non-trading secunties as “financial assets at farr value through
profit or loss” under the relevant transitonal provisions, Changes in far values of these nvestments n

2005 were recognised In the income statement

Under the amended transitional provisions included in Amendment to HKAS 39 “The Farr Value Option®,
whuch i effective fom 1st January, 2008, the Group has re-designated the above “financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss™ as “available-for-sale financial assets™ since 1st January, 2006 Changes in faur
values of these investments are now dealt with as movemeants i mvestment revaiuation reserve

As the management considered the impact from the change 1s immatenal, except for the above
reclassification as disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements, no other adjustments have been

recogrused

The Group has not early adopted the following new HKFRSs issued by HKICPA thal are effective to the Group for
accounting periods beginming on or after 1st January, 2007 The Directors anticipate that the adophion of these
HKFRSs will have no matenal impact on the resuits and financial position of the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures

HK {IFRIC) ~ Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hypennflationary Economies

HK (FRIC) - Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK (IFRIC) - Int 9 Raassessment of Embedded Denvatives

HK (IFRIC) — int 10 Intenm Financial Reporting and Impairmen

HK (IFRIC) - Imt 11 HKFRS 2 Group and Treasury Share Transactions
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

110

Principal Accounting Policies

The consohdated financial staterments have been prepared n accordance with the Hong Kong Financiat
Reporting Standards issued by HKICPA in addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Goverring the Listing of Securtias on Hong Kong Stock Exchange and by the
Companies Ordinance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost basts except for certan
preperties and financial instruments, which are measured at far values, as explaned in the pancipal accounting
policies set out below

{a}

(b}

Basis of Consolidation

Tha consolidated financial statements mclude the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidranes made up {o the year together with the Group's interests In assocatas and jointly controlled
entiies on the basis set out n {d) below

The resulis of subsichanes, associates and ointly controlled entiies acquired or disposed of during the
year are iInciuded In tha consolidated income statemant from the effective dates of acquisitions or up to
the effectve dates of disposals as appropnate

Goodwili

Goadwill represents the excess of costs of acquisition over the net far vaiue of the Group's share of the
identifiable assets, labiities and contingent labillies of the subsidianas, associates and jointly controlied
entties acquired Goodwill Is recogrised as an asset or Included in nterests in associatss or jontly
controlled entities (as appropnate) at cost less any identfied imparment loss

The Group has applied the refevant transtional prowsions n HKFRS 3 “Business Combination” Goadwill
recognised in resarves pnor to 1st January, 2001 continues to ba hald in the reserves and are transferred
to retained profits when the busness to which the goodwill relates is disposed ol or becormnes impared

For the purposse of iImpairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to each of the Group's cash-genarating

units expecied 1o benefil from the synergies of the business acquisiton Cash-generating units 10 whch
goodwill has been allocated are tested for urparment annually, or more frequentty when there 1s an
indication that the unit may be impaired 1f the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 15 less than
the carmying amount of the unit, the Impaiment loss 1s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the camyng
amount of each asset in the unit. An impaiment loss recognised for goodwil s not reversed in subsequent
penods
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Principal Accounting Policies {Cont'd)

(b)

()

{d)

Goodwill (Cont'd)

On disposal of a subsidiary, assaciate or jointly controlled entity, the attnbutable amount of goodwl 1s
inciuded In the determination of the gain or Ioss on disposal

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary 1s an entity that 15 controlled by the Company Control 1s achieved where the Company has
the power 10 govern the financial and operating palicies of such entity so as 10 obtan benefits from its
achvihies

The acquisition of subsidianes i1s accounted ior using the purchase method The cost of the acquistion is
measured at the aggregate of the farr values, at the date of axchange, of assets gven, abilities incurred
or assumed, and equity Instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquires, plus any
costs directly attnbutable to the business combination The acquiree’s identifiable assets, labihties and
contingent liabilties, where appropnate, are recognised at ther far values at the acquisition date

Associates and Jointly Controlled Entities

An associate (s a company, other than a sutsidiary or jointly controlled entiy, in which the Group has a
long-term aquity interest and over which the Group 15 1IN a position to exercise sigrvficant influence over its
management, Including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions,

A joint venture s a contractual arrangement whereby the venturers undertake an ecanomic actity which
15 subject to joirt control and over wihich none of the participating parties has unilateral control A jointly
controlled entity 15 the joint venture which involves the establishrnent of a separate entdy

The results and assels and liatylties of assocates/jointly controlied entites are incorporated in the Group's
financial statements using the equity method of accounting Under the equity methed, investments in
associates/jointty controlled entibes are camad in the consofidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group's sharz of the net assets of the associates/jomtly controlled entiies,
less impaiment in the valuas of indmvdual investments

Losses of an associata/jointly controlied entity in excess of the Group’s interast in that associate/jointly
controfted entity (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
nvastment in the associatefjointly controtied entity) are not recognised
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

112

Principal Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

{e)

{9)

(h)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impaument
losses The cost of an asset compnses s purchase pnce and any directly attnbutable costs of bnnging
the asset to s workung candition and location for s intended use

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 calculated o wrile off therr dapreciable amounis over
therr estimated useful ives using the straight ine method, at the {oflowing rates per annum

Buildings 1 Y4% 10 3 /2% or over the unexpired leass
terms of the land, whichever i1s the tigher
Mams, pipes, other 3% 1033'%
plant and machinery
Others 5% 1033 'h%

When an asset s disposed of or retired, any gan or loss, representing the difference between the camyng
value and the sales proceeds, if any, 15 included in the Income statement

Investment Property

Invastment property, which 1s property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, 1s staled al its
far value at the balance sheet date Galns cr lasses ansing from changes in the farr values of invesiment
properties are racogmsed in the income statement for the penod N which they arise

Leasehoid Land

Leasehold land 15 classified as prepaid operating leases and are amortised over the unexpirad lease terms
using the straight-ine method

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, computed on a waighted-average or a first-in first-oul basis
as appropriate, and net realisable value Cost includes cost of purchase and where applicable, cosl of
conversion and other costs that have besn ncurmad in bnnging the Inventones to ther prasent location
and conditon Net realisable value 1s determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceads less astmated
costs to completion and sefing expenses
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

Principal Accaunting Policies (Cont'd)

U]

1)

Contract Work

When the outcome of a contract can be estmated refiably, revenue and costs associated with the contract
are recogrised as revenue and expenses respecively by reference 1o the stage of completion of the
contract achvity at the balance sheet date, that is the proportion that confract costs incurmed for work
performed 10 date bears to the estimated total contract costs

When the outcome of a contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue 1s recogrised only to the exient of
contract costs incurred that will probably be recoverable.

Wwhen it 15 probable that total contract costs will exceed total revenue, the expected loss 1s recognised as
an expense immediatety

Financial Instruments
Interests in infrastructure project investments

Investments i joint ventures are classified as infrastructure projact investments, where the Group s retum
15 predetermingd in accordance with the provisions of the redevant agreements and the venturers' share of
net assets are not in proporion to therr capital contnbution ratios but are as defined in the contracts and
n respact of which the Group 1s not entitled to share the assets at the end of the investmen! penods

The Group's interasis in the nfrastructure project nvestments are stated at amortised cost using effective
mnterest method The camying amount of such interests is reduced to recogrise any identfied impairment
losses of indvidual nvestments

Investments in secunties

The Group's investments in secunties are classified as either financial assets at far value through profit or
loss or avallable-for-sale financial assets, and are measured at far value

Where secunties classified as financial assels at fair value through profit or loss, gains and losses ansing
from changes in far values are dealt with in the income statement

For avallable-for-sale financial assets, gains and losses ansing from changes in far values are dealt with
as movements in Investment revaluation reserve, until the assets are disposad of or are determined to be
impaired, al which time the cumulative gains or losses previously recogrised In the reserve 1s included in
the income stalement for the penod Impairment lossas recogrused in the Income statement for avallable-
ior-sale financial assets are not subsequantly reversed in the income statement,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Principal Accounting Policies (Cont'd})

0

114

Financial Instruments (Cont'd}
Denvative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Denvatve financial Instruments are mitially measured at far values on the dates at which the contracts are
enterad into, and are remeasured to therr falr value at subsaquent reporting dates

Changes in the far values of denvatve finarcial Instruments that are designated as effective in hedging
future cash flows are recognised directly in hedging reserve Any ineffective portion 1s recognised
immediately in the income statarment

Changes m the lar values of denvative financial Instruments that do net qualify for hedge accounung are
recognised tn the income statement

Hedge accounting 18 discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, or the hedge no longer qualifiss for hedge accounting Any cumulative gain or loss deferred
In equity at that time remans in equity and 1s recogrised when the forecast transaction 1s ulimatety
recogrused in profit or loss When a forecast transaction 1S no longer expected to occur, the cumulatve
gam or loss 1hat was deferred in eguity 15 recognised immediately in profit or loss

Trade deblors

Trade debtors are inbally measured at far value and subsequentty measured at amorused cost using the
effectva mterest method Appropnate allowances for estimated imecoverable amounts are recogrised in
the income slatement when there 1s objecine evidence that the assets are impared

Cash and cash equwvalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash on hand and demand depasits, and other short-term
heghly liquid investments that are readily convertible 1o a known amount of cash and are subject 1o an
insignuficant nsk of changes 1n value

Bank and other loans

Interest-beanng bank and other loans are wutally measured at fair values, and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method Any difference batween the proceeds (net of
transaction cosls) and the settlament or redemption of borrowings 1s recognised over the terrns of tha
borowings In accordance with the Group's accounting policy for bormowing ¢osts

Trade creditors

Trade creditors are intially measured at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective inlerest method
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Principal Accounting Palicies {Cont'd)

)]

(W}

Financial Instruments (Cont'd)
Equity instruments

Equity nstruments issyed by the Company are recorded at the proceeds recerved, net of direct issue
costs

Financal guarantée contracls

A financial guarantee contract 1s a contract thal requires the issuer to make specified payments 10
reimburse the holder for a loss It incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordanca with the onginal or modified terms of a debt nstrument A financial guarantee contract ssued
by the Group, which is not designed as a far value through profit or loss, 1s recognised intially at its far
value less transaction costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of the financial guarantee contract

Fair valug

Far value of financial assets and financsal labities with standard terms and conditions and traded on
active fiqud markets are detemmined with reference to quoted markest pnces. Far value of financial assets
and financial labiities nat traded on actve iquid markets are determuned wilh raference to far value
eshmated by independent professionals

Revenue Recognltion
Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods are recogrised at the ime when the goods are delivered or title to the goods
passes to the customers. Revenue 1s amved at aftar deduction of any sales returns and discounts and
doss not mnclude sales taxes

Raturn from infrastructure project investments

Ratum from mirastructure project mvestments Is accrued on a Ume basis, by reference lo the camying
amount and at the effective interast rate apphcable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expectsd Ife of the infrastructure project to that project’s net carying
amount at mihal recogration

interest income

Interest ncome 15 accrued on a time basls, by reference to the pnngipal outstanding and at Lhe effecive
mterest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estmated fulure cash receipts through the
expected life of the financiat assat to that assel's net camrying amount
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

Principal Accounting Pelicies {Cont'd}

(k}

0]

Revenue Recognition (Cont’d)
incorne from invesiments in secunties

Dnvidend and inierest income from investments In secuntigs are recognised when the Group's nght 10
receive payment is established

Conlract revenug
Income from contracis is recognised accoming to the stage of completion
Foreign Currencies

The indwidual financial statements of each group enlity is presented in the currency of the pamary
economic anvironment in which the enltity operales (‘functional cumency’) For the purpose of the
consohdated financial staterments, the resuft and financial pesiion of each entity are presentad in Hong
Kong Dollars, which is the functional cumency of the Company and the presentation currency for the
consolidated financial staterments,

In prepanng tha financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the

enlty's functional currency (“foreign currencies”) are recorded at the rates of exchangs prevaling on the

dates of the transactions At each balance shest date, monetary nems denominated in foreign curencies

are retranslated at the rates pravaling on the balance sheet date Non-monaetary tems camed at far value

that are denomunated in forelgn currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the

far value was determined Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of histoncal cost in a foreign |
currency are not retranslated

Exchange diffarences ansing on the settlement of monetary items, and on the relranslaticn of monetary |
items, are Included in the income staterment for the year Exchange differences arlsing on the retranslation ‘
of non-monelary items camed at far values are included in the income statement for the year except for

differences ansing on the retranslation of non-monetary tems in respect of which gains and losses are

recogrused directly In equity For such non monetary items, any exchange component of that gan or loss

18 also recognised directly i equity

For the purposa of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and lisbiibes of the Group's
foreign operations ara translated into Hong Kong Dollars using exchange rates prevaiing on the balance
sheet date Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchanga rates fiuctuated sigruficantly dunng that year, n which case the exchange rales at the dates

of the transactions ara used Exchange differences ansing, if any, are classified as equity and transfarred
to the Group's exchange translation reserve Such translation diffierences are recogrused in the income
statemment in the year in which the foreign operation is disposed of
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3. Principal Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

0

(m)

Foreign Currencies (Cont'd)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on iha acquisition of a foreign opération are lreated as assets
and abimes of the foraign oparation and ransiated at the closing rate

Taxation

Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided for at the prevaling rate on the estimated assessable profits less
available tax retief for losses brought torward of each inddual company comprising the Group COverseas
1ax s provided for at the apphcable local rates on the astimated assessable profits of the individuaf
company concerned

Deferred tax 1s provided using balance shest Lahilty mathod, on all temporary difierencas ansing between
tha carrying amounts of assats and habilities in the financial staterments and the comesponding tax bases
usad in the computation of taxable profit of the corresponding year Deferred tax habilities are generally
recogrised for all taxable lemporary differences, and deferred tax assels are recognised 1o 1he extent
that it 1s probabla that taxable profits will be available aganst which deductible temporary differences can
be utlised Such assets and liabiliies are not recogmised If the temperary difierence anses from goodwall
or from the initlal recognition (other than n a business combinaton) of other assets and labiities in g
transaction that affects nesther the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax habiities are recognised for 1axable temporary differences ansing on investments in
subsichanes, associates and joint ventures, excep! whare the Group 1s able 10 control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it 15 probabls that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foresecable
future

The camyng amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
exient that it «s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will ba avalable 1o allow all or part of the
assets to be recovered

Deterred tax i1s calculated at the tax rates that are expacted 10 apply in the year when the habilty 15 settied
or the asset s realised Deferred tax s charged or credited in the ncome statement, except when i relates
to items charged or credied directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax s algo dealt with in equity
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Principal Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

n}

{0}

(P

Operating Leases

Leases where substaniially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of assats remain with tha lessors
arg accounted for as operating leases Rentals payable under operating leases are recorded In the
consolidated income statement on a straghl-ine basis over the respectve lsase terms

Finance Leases

Leases that transfer substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the leased assels to the lessees
are accounted for as finance leases

The amounts due from the lessees under finance lease contracls are recorded as finance lease debtors
The finance lease debtors compnse the gross Investment in leases less uneamed finance lease iIncome
allocated to fulure accounting penods The uneamed finance lease ncome 1s allocated to future
accounting periods so as to reflect constant penodic rates of retumn on the Group's net Invesiments
oulstanding in respect of the isases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets at therr far values or. if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payrnent al the dates of acquistion The comesponding labiities o 1he lessor
are shown within bank and other loans In the balance sheet as cbhigations under finance leases Finance
costs are charged to the income statement over the terms of the relevant leases 0 as 1o produce a
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounling penad

Employee Retirement Benefits
The Group operates defined contnbution and defined benefit retirement plans for ts smployees

The costs of definad contnbution plans are charged to the income statement as and when the
contnbutions fall due

The cost of providing retirement benefits undar the Group's defined benefit reirement plans 1s determined
using the projected urut credit methad, with actuanal valuahons being camed out annually Aciuanal gans
and losses of defined benefit retirement plans are recognised immaediataly in full In the penod in which
they oceur, outside profit or loss, in equity Past sarvice cost is recognised immaediately to the extent

that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise s amortised on a straight-ing basis over the average
penod until the amanded benefits bacome vested. Any asselts resulting from this calculation is hmited

to unrecognised actuanal losses and past service cost, plus the present valus of avatable refunds and
reductions in future contributions to the plans,
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Principal Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

iq)

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in tha income statement in the year in which they are incurred, sxcept
to the extert 1hat they are capitalisad as beng directly attnbutable to the financing of the Group's
nfrastructure projects up to the commencement of revanue contnbution or upon commencement of
operation of the projects, whichaver is the earfier

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumption conceming the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 31st December,
2006, that have a significant nsk of causing a materal adjustmen! to the carmying amounls of assets and liabilities
within the next financsal year are discussed bslow

(a)

(b}

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tested for imparrment if there 1s any indication that the carmprg value of
these assets may not be recoverable and the assets are subject to an mpairment loss Tha recoverable
amount 15 the higher of an asset's far value less cosis to sell and value n use Tha value In use calculation
requires the Group to estmate the future cash flows expected to anse from the relevant cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate Is used in order to calculate the present value The camying value of
property, plant and equipment as at 31st December, 2006 15 HK$991 mifion

Impairment of Interests in infrastructure Project Investments

Deterrining whether interests in infrastructure project invesiments are imparred requires an esbmation
of the recoverahie amounts of infrastructure project investments, which represent the present values of
astimated futura cash flows from those invesiments, discounted at the ongmal effective Interest rates The
carrying amount of interests in infrastructure project Investmenis as at 31st December, 2006 1s HK$617

million
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4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Cont’d)

(c} Impairment of Cash-generating Units/Goodwill

Determining whaelher a cash-generating unt/goodwill 15 impaired requires an estimation of the value in
use of the relevant cash-generating unit The value in use calculation requires the Group 1o estimate the
future cash flows expected to anse from the cash-generating unt and suitable discount rate n order 1o
calculate tha present value Impairment iosses ara recogrised by the Group as foltows after imparment
18515 conducted for varlous cash-generating unils

Impairment loss Carrying value
recognised In at 31st December
income statement after impairment loss
HKS million 2006 2005 2006 2005
Interesis in associates 279 578 29,382 26,911
Interests In jointly controlied entitias - 214 4,238 4,337
Goodwll - 50 205 175

5. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's major financial instruments include nterasts in Infrastructure project mvestments, rvesiments i
secunes, denvative financial instruments, bank balances and deposis, bank and other loans and debiors and
creditors Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes  The nsks associated wilh
these financial mstruments and the policies on how to mitigale these nsks are set out below The management
manages and monitors thesa exposures to ensure appropnate measuras are Implemented on a timely and
effective manner

(a) Currency Risk

Several subsidranes of the Company have foreign investment, dwdend incomae, bank deposns and
borrowaings determined in fareign currency, which expase the Group to foregn cumency ask. The
managament considers that the foraign curency risk is offset by foreign cumency income generated from
forelgn operations,

(b}  Interest Rate Risk

The Group's interest rate nsk relates pnmarily to floating rate bank bomowings In refation to these floating
rate borrowmngs, the Group ams at keeping borrowings al fixed rates at appropnale level by entening into
different interest rate swap In order 10 actueve this rasult, the Group enterad into interest rate swaps to
hedge against carlan exposures to changes in nterest rates of the bomowings The cnuical terms of these
intarest rate swaps are simillar to those of hedged borrowings These interest rate swaps are designated
as effective cash flow hadges of interest rate nsk
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5.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies {Cont'd)

(c)

(d)

Credit Risk

The Group's maximum exposure 10 credi nsk in the event of the counterparties falure 10 perform their
obligations as at 31st Decamber, 2006 in relation 10 each class of recogrised financial assets is the
carmying amount of those assets as stated 11 the consolidated balance sheet In order to mirmise the
credrt nsk, local management teams of subsidianes are responsible for montorng the procedures to
ensure that follow-up actions are taken to recover averdue debts of the subsidianes (n additon, the teams
review the recoverable amount of each mdwdual debt at each balance sheet date to ensura that adequate
imparment losses are made lor imecoverabe amounts In this regard, the Drectors consider that the
Group's credit risk 15 significantly reduced

The credit risk on hquid funds 1s imited because the counterparties are banks or financial institutions with
high credit ratings

The Group has no significant concentration of credit nsk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterpariigs and customers

Price Risk

The Group's investrment in secunties are measured at fair value at each balance sheet date, Therelore, the
Group 1s exposad to equity securty pnce nsk The management manages this exposure by mantaining a
portfolio of nvestments with different nsk profiles
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Group Turnover and Share of Turnover of Jointly Controlled Entities

Group turnover reprasents net sales of infrastructure materlals, Income from the supply of water return from
infrastructure project investments, interest income from loans granted fo associates, and distribution from

investments in secuntties classified as infrastructure investments, net of withholding tax, where applcable

In addion the Group presents its proportionate share of turnover of jomitly controlled entities Turmover of

associates Is not included

The Group tumover and share of tumover of jointly controlled entities for the current year is analysed as follows

HKS mullion 2006 2005
Sales of infrastruciure materials 1,015 892
income from the supply of water 250 237
Return from mfrastructure projsct investments a9 138
Interest income from loans granted to associates 392 856
Distnbution from investments in listed secunties 66 24
Group turnover 1,822 2,247
Share of tumover of jointly controilad entities 2,977 2,503
4,799 4,750
Other Income
Other income includes the foliowing
HKS$ mrlion 2006 2005
Intarest income from banks 384 259
Finance lease ncome 1 2
Gain on disposals of infrastructure project investment 115 14
Change in farr values of investment properties 3 3
Change in farr values of nvestments in secuntias (24) 16
Change n far values of denvative financial instruments (49) 26

Gain on disposals of hsted secunties
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10.

Operating Costs

HKS mution 2008 2005

Staff costs including directors’ emoluments 290 3an

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 52 134

Amortisation of prepayment for leasehold land 10 11

Raw matenals and consumables used 438 347

Changes in inventones of finished goods and work-in-progress {12) (10}
Other operating expenses 809 936

Total 1,587 1,729

Finance Costs

HK$ milion 2006 2005
Interest and other finance costs on

Bank borrowings wholly repayable within 5 years 454 658
Notes repayable after 5 years €9 74

Total 523 732

Gain on Disposals of Associates

HK$ rmulbon 2006 2005
Disposal of 4% interests in ETSA Utilihes, Powsrcor and CitlPower - 3,699
Disposal of 8 9% Interest in Northern Gas Networks Holdings Limited - 64
Total - 3,763

Pror 1o December 2005, the Group and Hongkong Electnc Holdings Limited (an associate of the Group) held
100 per cent mnterests, on a 50/50 basis, n 3 associate groups of companies, ETSA Uliities, Powercor and
CmPower which operate and manage vanous electicity distnbution businesses n Australia In December 2005,

the Group sold its 49 per cent interests in these associate groups 1o Spark Infrastructure Group, a stapled group
listed in the Australian Stock Exchange Limited, at a consideration of approxmately A2 2 bilhon
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11,

12,
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Impairment Losses

Bunng fhe current year the Group recognised imparrment tosses of the following assets

HKS milhan 2006 2005
Property, plant and equipment {note 17) - 789

Leasehold land (note 19) - 21

Interests in associaies (note 20) 279 578
Interests i jointty controliad entties (note 21) - 214

Interests in nfrastructure project investments (note 22) - 95
Goodwill (note 25} - 50
Total | 279 1,727

Profit Before Taxation

HKS million 2006 2005

Profit before taxation 1s arived at after {crediting)/charging:

Contract ravenus (290) (172)
Loss/{Gan} on disposals of property, plant and equipment 2 ©
Nat exchange gain (17) (168)
Operating lease rental for land and buldings 12 12

Diractors’ emoluments (note 36) 35 32

Auditors’ remuneration 5 5

Share of tax of associates 707 (65)
Shara of tax of jointly controllad entites 183 153
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13.

Taxation

Hong Kong Profits Tax 1s prowided for at the rata of 17 5 per cent (2005 17.5 per cent ) on the estimated
assessable profits less avallable tax losses Qverseas tax 1s provided for at the applicable tax rate on the

estmated assessabla profits less avalable tax losses

HK$ rmdlion 2006 2005
Current laxation

- Hong Kong Profits Tax 6 5

- Qverseas tax 9 15
Deaferred taxation (note 31) {11) 47
Total 4 67
Reconcihation between tax charge and accounting profit at Hong Kong Profits Tax Rate
HKS milion 2006 2005
Profit before taxaton 3,677 5,808
Less share of results of associates (2,751} (3,183)

share of results of jointly controlled entibes (737) (311)

Total 189 2414
Tax at 17 5% (2005 17 5%) 33 422
Tax impact on:
Different domestic rates of subsidianes operating in

other tax junsdicthions {188) 230
Income not subject to tax (42} (1.148)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 199 204
Tax losses and other temporary differences not recognised : 29 245
Others (27} 24
Tax charge 4 67
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14. Profit for the Year and Segment Information

In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting, the Group has determined that businass segments be
presented as the pnmary reporting format and geographic regions as the secondary reporting format

By business segment
for the year ended 31st December

Investment In Infrastructure
Honghkong Infrastructure related Unallocated
Electric® Investments business ttems Consolldated

HKS miGon 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Group tumover - - 807 1,255 1,015 992 - - 1,822 2247
Share of turnover of omily

controlled entibes - - 2371 1,996 606 507 - - 2977 2503

- - 3378 3251 1621 1499 - - 4,793 4730
Segment revenue
Group tumaover - - BO7T 1,255 1,015 992 - ~ 1,822 2247
Cthers - - 55 a3 75 70 - - 130 103
- - 862 1,2B8 1,090 1,062 - - 1952 235

Segment result - - 633 1,087 {28) (253) - - 605 7684
Net gan on disposals

of infrastructure proect

nvestment and bsted securdes - - 115 14 - 1 - - 115 15
Change in far values of

mnvestmeanis n secunlies and

derivatve financ.al instruments - - - 75 (26) 23 47 0 {73) 42
Interest and ficance lbase incorme - - 2 1 126 102 257 158 385 81
Exchange gan - - - - - - 171 168 m 168
Corporate overheads and others - - - - - - {212 (180} (212 (160)
Finance costs - - {20} f21) - - {503} (711) (523} (732)
Gain on disposals of assoclates - - - 3,763 - - - - - 37
imparment 0s5es - - 121790 (337 . - - {2m9) (1727}
Share of results of asscclates

and jointly controlled entities 2,832 2492 820 1,048 38 {44) - - 3,488 3494
Profit/{Loss) betore taxation 2632 2492 1271 4978 108 (1,007} (334) 555 3,677 5908
Taxation - - 3 (58} 5 4} (6} (] (4) {57
Profit/{Loss) far the year 2,632 2492 1268 4920 13 (1.011)  (340) {560) 3,673 5,84%
Attnbutable to”
Snhareholkdters of the Company 2,632 2492 1268 4,920 110 (B45) 1340} {560) 3.670 6.007
Minority interests - - - - 3 (166) - - 3 (186

2532 2492 1,288 4920 113 (1.011) {340} (560) 3,673 584

Other intormalion
Capital expanditure - - s 41 10 36 - - 45 77
Depraciation and amorisation - - 26 25 36 119 - 1 62 145
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14. Profit for the Year and Segment information {Cant'd)

By business segment [Cont'd)

aslat 31st December
[nvestment in Infrastructure
Hongkong Infrastructure related Unallocated
Electric” Investmenta business iteams Consolidated
HKS millon 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
E ]
Assets
Segment assels - ~ 3,837 3585 2547 2.336 - - 6484 5921
Inta:fsts n assocates and ontly
controlied entdies | 18,313 17,682 15,106 13,352 201 214 - - 33,620 31,248
Unallocated corporate assets - - - - - - 7518 7386 7518 7386
Tolal assets 18,313 17,882 19,043 16,937 2,748 2550 7,518 7,386 47,622 44555
Liabilrties
[}
Segment lizbines - - 845 B9 210 250 - - 1,115 1,069
Taxabon, deferred 1axation and
unaliocated comporate liabiites - - 361 319 143 147 10,138 9,484 10,642 9850
Total liatulitles - - 1,206 1,138 413 397 10,138 9484 11757 11018

* Dunng the year, the Group has 8 38 87 per cent aquity interest in Hangkong Electnc Holongs Lemined (Hongkong Electrc®)
which i3 listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange
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14, P:‘ofit for the Year and Segment Information (Cont'd)

128

By geographic region
for the year ended 3181 December

| Manland UK and Unaliocated
; Hong Kong China Australla Cthers ltams Consolidated
HKS miion 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 22006 205
Group tumover 728 699 29 421 4S8 B 3T 247 - - 182 2
Share of tumover of jontly
coriroliod entities 475 401 2502 2102 - - - - - - 291 253
1203 1100 2784 2573 458 880 57 247 - - 4799 4750
]
Segment revenue
Group turnover 128 699 M9 421 458 880 57 247 - - 1822 2247
Others 48 40 50 ¥ - - M kil - - 130 103
774 738 3% 453 458 880 ] 278 - - 1852 2350
Segment resull (29} {133} a7 {24) 4485 880 az 1 - - 605 784
Nét gas on disposals
of nfrastructure progect
mestment and kstad secunlies - - 15 14 - - - 1 - - 115 15
Change In tar values of
vestments m securibies and
darivatve 1nanaal nstruments - - - - - % % @) {@n ({7 e
Interest znd france leasa noome 128 102 - - - - 2 \ 257 158 335 261
Exthango gan - - - - - - - - 17 168 mn 168
Corporate overheads and othar - - - - - - - - [212) (1604 {2120  (i80y
Firance costs - - - - - - [20) @) 5y [ (s (3
Gan 'on disposals of associales - - - - - 359 - 64 - - - 3763
Impainnent oases - 208 - 74 219 678) - &n - - {2719 (12D
Snare of results of assocates
and jonty controled enlbes 2692 2549 596 72 (122 685 27 43 - - 3458 3.4
Profit/{Loss) before taxalion 2783 2210 §98 {512 64 47651 260 4 [334) {585 3671 5908
Taxation 5 3 - - - )] 3 83 {6) (5 4 6N
ProfitfiL oss) lor the year 2794 206 [ I L ] B4 47 257 B [0 B60 3673 564
Altnbutablp to*
Shareholdars of the Company 2194 2,206 BSS  (346) M 478 57 @1 (340) 5600 3670 6007
Minorty ntorests - - k] (166} - - - - - - 3 {166)
279 2206 B8 (1Y 64 4738 57 B1}  (M40)  BAY 3673 584
Other mformation
Ceptal expanciture H 1] 3 6 - - 35 41 - - 45 mw

¢

'
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{
14. Profit for the Year and Segment Information (Cont'd)

15.

16.

By geographic region {(Cont'd)
as at 31st December
I

| Maintanc UK and Unallocated
Hong Kong China Australia Cthers iems Consolidated
millon 008 2006 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 005
Assets
Sagment assets 2213 1887 B89 911 2183 1877 1209 1046 - - 64 5021
nlovests n assocates and
pintly controlied entoes 18,668 18022 4058 4154 7554 5950 340 312 - - WE0 N
Unajocated comorate assels - - - - - - - - 158 7386 1518 7386
1
Total assets 20881 20008 4827 5065 9747 78927 4539 168 7518 T306 41622 44555

Earnings Per Share

|
Th? calculation of earnings per share 1s based on the profit attnbutable to shareholders of the Company of
HK‘SB.BTO millon (2005: HKE6,007 million) and on 2,254,209,945 shares {2005 2,254,209,845 shares) in 1ssue

during the year. |
|

Dividends

HKIIS milion 2008 2005

Ime!nm dvidend paid of HK$0 25 (2005: HKS0 24) per share 564 541

Proposed final dwvdend of HKS0 75 (2005 HKE0 708} per share 1,690 1.596

Total 2,254 2137
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NOTE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment

S TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mains,
Freehold land pipes, other Furmiture,
outside plant and fixtures
HKS$ milion Hong Kong Bulldings  machinery  and others Total
Cost
Al 1st January, 2005 5 747 2,814 116 3.782
Addiicns - 7 62 1 70
Disposals - {4} (100} (76) (180Q)
Exchange translation differences - 8 {93) 1 {84)
Transfers * {2) (18) 5 @ (19)
At 315t December, 2005 3 740 2,788 38 3.569
Additions - - 41 4 45
Disposals - (8} {130) @ {146)
Exchange translation diffarences - 15 159 1 175
Transfers " - {4) B) - (10)
At 31st December, 2006 3 742 2,852 36 3,633
]
Accumutated depreciation
and impaimenl loss
At 1st January, 2005 - 367 1,456 95 1,918
Charge for the year - 24 104 6 134
Impairment oss - 275 485 9 769
Disposals - 3 (70) (69) (142)
Exchange transialion differences - 3 (25} 1 @1
Transfers - 14 (18) )] {8}
At 31st December, 2005 - 680 1,932 38 2,650
Charge for the year - 3 46 1 52
Disposals - 8) nmn ) {132)
Exchange translation diffarences - 13 60 1 74
Transfers * - 3 {5) - {2)
Al 315t December, 2006 - 693 1.916 as 2,642
Camying valus
At 31st December, 2006 3 49 936 3 991
Al 31st Decemnber, 2005 3 60 B56 - 819

{2005 HK$5 mion) .
]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17.

18.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd)

The carming value of the Group's mains, pipes, other piant and machinery Includes an amount of HKS225 mdion
(2005 HK$199 milion) in respect of assets held under finance leases

The Dwectors reviewad the Group's praperty, plant and equipment based on value In use calculation The
discount rate used was 8 5 per cent (2005 B 5 per cent} No impairment lass has been recognised for the
property, plant and equipment dunng the year (2005 HK$769 miton)

Investment Properties

HK$ milfion

Medium term leases in Hong Kong, at fair value

Transfer from property, plant and equipment and leasehold land 56
Change in far values 3
At 31st Decembaer, 2005 59
Transfer from propsrly, plant and equipment and leasshold land 68
Change in far values 3
At 31st December, 2006 130

The far values of the Group’s investment properties a1 31st December, 2006 are datermingd based on a valuaton
camed out by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung, ndependent qualified professionat valuers not connected with the
Group. DTZ Debenham Tle Leung 1s a member of the Institute of Vialuers with appropnate qualificabons and
recent expenences in the valuation of similar focauons The valuation, which conforms to International Vatuation
Standards, was completed by referenca to market svidencs of transaction pnces for similar properues
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19. Leasehold Land

Medium Medium
term term
leasehold leasehold
land in land outside
HK$ milion Mong Keng Hong Kong Total
Operating lease prepayment
Al 1st January, 2005 458 45 503
Additions 7 - 7
Transiers * {35y - {35)
Exchange transiation differences - 1 1
At 31st December 2005 430 46 476
Transfers 27) - (27)
Exchange translation differences - 2 2
Al 31s! December, 2006 403 48 451
Accumulated amorlisation and impairment loss
At 18l January, 2005 110 10 120
Charge for the year 10 1 11
Impairment Ioss - 21 21
Transfers* {2) - )
At 31st December, 2005 118 32 150
Charge lor the ysar 9 i 10
Transfers® {11) - (11)
Exchange translaton diferences - 1 1
At 315t December, 2006 116 34 150
Canrying value
At 315t December, 2006 287 14 3m
Al 31st Decembar, 2005 312 14 326

*  Dunng the year, certain ieasehold tand of the Group was transierrad 1o nvestment propertes with no revakuation gan (2005 HKS?

mibon)

The Directors reviewed the Group's Isasehold land based on value in use calculation The tiscount rate used was
85 per cent (2005 8.5 per cent) No impaiment loss has been recognised for the leasehold land dunng the

year (2005° HK$21 milion),
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20.

Interests in Associates

HKS mullion 2006 2005
Investment ¢osts
- Listed in Hong Kong 8,687 B.687
- Unlisted 7,444 6,250
Share of post-acquisstion raserves 9,871 8,704
26,002 23,641
Impament 1088 (857) (578)
25,145 23,063
Amounts due by unlisted associates 4,237 3,848
At 31st December 29,382 26.911
Market value of Investment in a hsted associate 31,608 31,857

Included i the amounts due by unisted associates are subordinated loans of HK$3,644 mulfion {2005 HKE3,369
miton) The nghts in respect of these loans are subordinated to the nghts of any other lenders to the associates

The Drrectors reviewed certan associates' operatons and financial positions as at 3 1st December, 2006 based

on value 1 use calculation Dua to unsatisfactory operaling performance, a further imparment loss of HK$279

mullion (2005- HKE578 mulion) was made against interests in assectates, which operaled the Cross City Tunnel in

Sydney, Australia

Summansed financial information in respect of the Group's associates 1S set oul below

HK$ miion 2006 2005
Total assets 170,012 153.621

Total kaknihes (108,538) (91.,663)
Net assets 61,474 61,958
Total turnover 26,480 25,445
Total profit for the year 7,036 11,033
Shared by the Group:

Net assels of the associates 26,002 23,641

Profit of the associates far the year 2,751 3,183

Particulars of the prncipal associates are set out n Appendix 2 on pages 160 10 162
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21.

134

interests in Jointly Controlled Entities

HK$ mulfion 2006 2005
Investrment costs 3,456 3,385
Share of post-acquisition reserves (380) (458)
3,076 2,027
Impairment loss (214) (214)
2,862 2,713
Shareholders' loans to jointly controlled entities 1,376 1,624
At 31st Decembar 4,238 4,337

The Group's interests in a jointly cantrolled entity with camying value of HKS$1,773 milicn as at 31st December,
2006 {2005 HKE1,736 rmiilion) have been pladged as part of the secumty 10 secure certain bank borrowings
granted to the jointly controtied entity

The Directors reviewed certain Jointly controlled entiies’ oparations and financial positions as at 31st Decernber,
2006 based on value n use calculaton No further Impairment loss (2005 HK$214 muillion) aganst interests in
Jointly controlled entiies was recogrised in curment year A discount rate of 9 per cent (2005 9 per cent ) was
appled on projected cash llows for the valug in use calculation

Summarsed financial iInformation in respect of the Group's jointly controllad entities 1s set out below

HKSE milion 2006 2005
Total assets 18,490 18,687
Total iabidies (13,295) (13,019)
Net assets 6,195 5,668
Total turnover 6,738 5,844
Total profit for the year 1,410 1,157

Shared by the Group:
Net assets of the jointly controllad entibes 3,076 2,927
Profit of jointly controlled entities for the year 737 an

Particutars of the pancipal jointly controlled entities are set out n Appendix 3 on page 163
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22.

23.

Interests in Infrastructure Project Investments

HKS million 2006 2005
Investments 617 760
Impairment [oss - {95)
At 31st Dacember 617 665

Portion classified as;

Non-cument assets 490 579
Current assets 127 86
At 31st December 617 665

Interasts in infrastructura project Investments canry effective INterast rates which range from 13 7 percent t0 165
per cent {2005 range from 13 7 per cent to 16.5 per cent )

The Directors reviewed certain infrastructure projects’ operations and financial posttions as at 31st Decemnber,
20086 based on the present values of estimated future cash flows from those investments, discounted at

the onginal effective interest rates No further imparment loss (2005- HKE95 mulion) against the interests in
infrastructure project investments was recognised m ¢urrent year

Investments in Securities

HKS rmullion 2006 2005

Financia! assets at farr value through profit and loss

Stapled securnies, Iisted overseas - 867"
Notes, unlisted 777 -
Unlisted equity securties 262 200
Equity investments, listed overseas 19 44

Available-for-sale financial asseis
Stapled secunties, listed overseas 2,006 981

Total 3,064 2,092

* On st January, 2006, stapled secuntes of HKSBET milllion were reclassified as available-for-sale financal assats from financal
assets al far vadue through profit and loss pursuant e Amandment to HKAS 39 as detailad m nole 2{b)

A stapled secunty comprises vanous subordinated loan notes and fully paid ordinary shares It 1s quoted al a
single combined pnce and cannot be tradad separately.
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24. Derivative Financial Instruments

2006 2005

HKS million Assets Liabilities Assets Liabiities
Forward foreign exchange coniracts 369 {664) 459 (360)
Interest rate swaps 38 - - (10
At 3tst December 407 (654) 459 {370}
Portion classified as:
Non-curreni a8 {179 447 (370)
Current 369 {485) 12 -

a07 {864) 459 (370)

Currency Denvatives

Dunng the current year, the Group utlised currency dervatives to hedge significant future transections and cash
flows The Group s a party to a vanety of foreign currency forward contracts it the management of ts exchange
rate exposures

At 31st December, the total notional amount of cutslanding forward foresgn exchange contracts committed by
the Group are as follows

HKS millon 2006 2005

Forward foraign exchange contracts
Buy 4,444 5115
Sell 4,750 4,804

Mayor terms of these contracts ara as follows:

Notional amount Matunty
Sell AUD179 7 million 23rd March, 2007
Sell GBP26 6 million 30th Apri, 2007
Sell GBP212 4 millon 241h May, 2010
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24. Derivative Financial Instruments (Cont'd}

Currency Derivatives (Cont'd)

At 31st Decembar, 2006, the toial far value of the Group's currency denvatives 1s estimatad to be approximately
HK$295 million (net katilities to the Group) (2005 HK$99 millon (net assets to the Group)) These amounts are

based on quoted market pnees for equivalent instruments at 31st December, 2006, compnsing HK$369 million
(2005 HKB459 millon} assets and HK3664 milion (2005 HKE360 mulon) habiltres

The far values of the above currency denvatives that are designated and effective as cash fiow hedges totaling
HK3255 million (net iabitties to the Group) (2005 HK$77 milon (net assets 10 the Group)) have been deferred in
equity at 31st Dacember, 2006

Change In far values of non-hedging currency denvativas amounting ta HK$49 milion (2005. far value gain of
HK326 milion) has been debited to the income statement for the current year

Interest Rate Swaps

Dunng the cument year, the Group utihsed mierast rate swaps 10 manage I1s exposure 10 interest rate movements
on its bank borowings by swapping a proportion of those borrewings from floating rates to fixed rates. The
nohonal pnncypal amounis of the interest rate swap contracts outstanding as at 31st December, 2006, thar
remaining terms and estmated total fair value are as follows.

Weighted Notional

Floating average fixed principal Estimated
HKS million intarest rate mnterast rate amount fair value
Contracts matunng in 2010 8BsSw or LIBOR 562% 1,726 a7
Fair value deferred n equity at 31st December, 2006 37
Contracts matunng n 2010 BBSW or LIBOR" 563% 1,560 (10}
Fair value deferred n equity at 31st December, 2005 (0

*  BBSW - Ausiralan, Bank Bit Swap Reference Rale
LIBOR - London Interhank Offered Rate

The far value estimation covenng the above interest rate swap contracts 1s based on quoted marke! pnees for
equralent instruments at 31st December, 2006 All of the above interest rate swaps are designated and efiective
as cash flow hedges and the farr values (nst liabilities to the Group) have been deferred in equity
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25.

138

Goodwill

HKS million 2006 2005
At 1st January 175 257
impairment loss - {50)
Exchange diffsrence 30 (32)
At 31st Deceamber 205 175

The goodwill was recogrised on acquisition of 100 per cent interest in Cambndge Water PLC ("Cambndge
Water"}, the water suppler in South Cambridgeshire of the United Kingdom:

The Group tests goodwill annualty for impamment, or more frequently if there are indications that the goodwil
might be impawed

The recoverable amount of Gambridge Water, which covers the above goodwill, s determined from a value in use
calculation, The key assumptions for the valug i use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth
rates, and expecied changes 10 seling prces and direct costs dunng the penod The Group estmates discount
rate using the rate that reflects curent market assessments of the ime value of money and the nsks specific 1o
Cambridge Waler The growih rates are based on industry growth forecasts Changas in sefling pnces and chrect
costs ara basad on past practices and expectatons of future changes in the relevant markets

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts denved from Cambridge Water's approved budget for 2007 to 2011 and
extrapolates cash flows for the subsequent 10 years using the same cashfiows as that in 2011 The rate used 0
discount the forecast cash flows 1s 8 per cent (2005 8 per cent ) per annum.

As Cambndge Water's pnncipal operation is supply of water which 1s regulated 1 nature, the Group considers
that cash flow projection for 15 years and low growth rates are appropnate for the imparrment test review

The results of the reviews undertaken as at 31st December, 2006 ndicated that no further impairment charge
was necessary for current year (2005 HK$50 million)
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26. Inventories

HKS$ mullion 2006 2005
Raw materials 42 44
Work-in-progress 20 6
Stores, spare pans and supplies 9 1
Fimshed goods 28 30

99 N
Contract work-in-progress - 14
Total 99 105

Contract work-in-progress

Costs plus recognised profits less recognised losses - 140
Progress biling ~ (126)
Net amount - 14

The cost of iInvenlones charged to the Group’s income statement dunng the year was HK3$348 milion (2005
HK$3928 million)

27. Debtors and Prepayments

HK$ mithon 2006 2005
Tracke debtors 240 217
Prepayments, deposits and other recelvables 215 171
Total 455 388

The aging analysis of the Group's trade debtors is as follows

HKE million 2006 2005
Current 89 a5
1 month 69 60
2 10 3months 28 24
Over 3 months 176 175
Gross total 362 344
Allowance (122} {127
Total after allowance 240 217
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27.

28.

29.

140

Debtors and Prepayments (Cont'd)

Trade with customers for infrastructure matenals 1s carned out largely an credtt, excep! for new customers

and customers with unsatisfactory payment records, where payment in advance 1s normally requred Trade
with metered customers for waler supply 1s camed out largely on credit and with unmelered customers largely
by payment in advance Invoices are normally payable within 1 month of 1ssuance, except for certain well-
astablished customers, where the terms are extended to 2 months, and certain custormers with disputed items,
where the terms are negotiated indnadually Each customer has a maximum credit himit, which was granted and
appraved by senior management in accordance with the laid-down credtt review policy and procedures

Bank Balances and Deposits

Bank balances and deposits carry effective interesi rate at 4 66 per cent (2005 3 08 per cent )

Bank and Other Loans

HKS mulion 2006 2005

Unsecured bank lpans repayable

Withun 1 year 3,800 -
In the 2nd year 1,285 3,800
In the 3rd to 5th year, inclusive 2,241 3,223
After 5 years 3 3

7,329 7.026

Obhgations under finance leases repayable

Within 1 year 13 11
In the 2nd year 3 12
In the 3rd 10 5th year, nclusive 11 9
Alter 5 years - 3
27 as

Unsecurad notes, 3 5%, repayable after 5 years 1,971 1,895
Total 9,327 9,056

Portion classified as:

Current hatxlhies 3,813 11
Non-current liablities 5514 9.045
Total 9,327 9.056
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29. Bank and Other Loans (Cont'd)

The carrying amounis of the Group's borrowings are denomminated in the following currencles:

HKS AUS GBP JRY Total
HKS mulion 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Bank loans 3800 3800 3,121 2,886 408 340 - - 1329 7,026
Finance leases - - - - 27 35 - - 27 35
Notes - - - - - -~ 1,971 1995 1971 1995
Total 3800 3800 3,121 2,886 435 375 1,971 1995 9,327 9058

The average effective interest rates of the Group's bank loans and finance lsases are 4 93 per cent {2005 4 75
par cent } and 9 19 per cent (2005 9 41 per cent ), respectively

The Group's notes of HK$1,971 rmulion (2005 HKS1,995 million) as at 315t December, 2006 were arranged at
fixedt interast rate and expose the Group to farr value interest rate nsk, Other borowings were aranged at fioating
rates, thus exposed the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk

Bank loans (axcept for the fixed rate notes) camed nterest at floating rate, which determined wath reference to
Hong Kong Interbank Ofered Rate, Australian Bank Bill Swap Reference Rale or London Interbank Offered Rate
plus a margin less ihan one per cent..

1 -
Fixed rate notes, other loans and finance leases camed interast at 3 5 per cant lo 13 3 per cent
Details of the present value of the minimum finance lease payments are shown balow.

HK$ million 2006 2005

Minimum lease payments,

Within 1 year 15 13
In the 2nd year 4 13
In the 3rd to 5th year, inClusve 13 1
After 5 yoars - 4
32 4
Less luture finance charges (5) 6
Present value of lsase payments 27 35
Less Amount due for settlsment within 12 months {13) {11)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 14 24

At 31st December, 2008, the remaining weighted average lease term was 2.8 years. All leases are denomnated
in GBP on a fixed rapayment bass and no arrangements have been entered into for conlingent rental payments
The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors' charge over the leased assels
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30.

142

Creditors and Accruals

HKS million 2006 2005
Trade creditors 150 149
Amount dus 1o an unlisted associate 147 140
Other payables and accruals 948 816
Total 1,245 1,105
The aging analysis of the Group's trade crednors 1s as follows

HKS million 2006 2005
Current 103 B3
1 month 22 31
2 to 3 months 8 15
Over 3 months 17 20
Total 150 149
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31, Deferred Tax Liabilities

The following are the major deferred tax assets and llabilities recogmsed by the Group and movemments thereon
dunng the current and pnor years

Accelerated Fair value
tax Tax changas in
HKS mihon depreciation losses secunties Others Total
At 15t January, 2005 274 {56) 129 {3) 344
({Credit)/Dabd to profit for the year {26) 55 22 (4) 47
Exchangs translation differences (24) - (8) 1 (29)
At 315t Decormnber, 2005 224 (1} 145 {6 362
(Credit)/Dabrt to profit for the year (13) - - 2 (11)
Charge 10 equrty for the year - - 18 - 18
Exchange tranglation differences 21 - 12 {1) 32
At 31st December, 2006 232 (1) 175 (5) 40

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, all deferred tax assets have been offset against deferred ax
liabihties

Apant from the unused tax losses of which the deferred tax assets wers recognised as presented above, the
Group had unused tax losses and other unused tax credits totalling HKS1,618 milion (2005 HKS$1,504 milion) at
3151 December, 2006 No deferred tax asset has been recogmised in respect of these tax losses and tax credts
due to the unpredictabiity of future profit streams to uthise the avallable tax losses and tax credils An analysis of
the expry dates of the 1ax I0sses and tax credits is as follows

HKS million 2006 2005
Within 1 year 38 41
in the 2nd year 27 39
In the 3rd 1o 5th year, inclusive 98 89
No expry date 1,455 1,335
Total 1,618 1,504
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32. Retirement Pians

{a)

(b}

Defined Contnbution Retirement Plans

The Group provides defined contnbution retrement plans for its eligible employees axcapt for 2 defined
benefit plans for the employees of certain subsidianes as detaled in (b} and (c} below

Contnbutions to the defined contnbution plans are made by etther the employer only at 10 per cent of the
employees’ monihly basic salaries or by both the employer and the employess each at 10 or 15 per cent
of the employees’ manthly basic salanes The Company and its Hong Kong subsidianes also participate
in master trust Mandatory Prowdent Fund (“"MPF") schemes operated by independent service providers
Mandatory contnbutions to these MPF schemes are made by both the employers and employees at 5 per
cent of ihe employees’ monthly relevant incorne each capped at HK$20,000

As the Group’s retirement plans in Hong Kong, including the defined benefit plan mentoned in (b) bekow,
are all MPF-exempted recognised occupaticnal retirement schemes ("ORSO schames”}, except for
certain subsidianes of which the new Hong Kong employees have 10 join the MPF schemes, the Group
offers an aption to its new Hong Kong employees 1o elect between the ORSO schames and the MPF
schemes

The Group’s costs in respect of defined contrbution plans for the year amounted 10 HK$10 milion (2005
HK$11 million} Forfeiled contnbutions and earnings faor the year under the defined contribution plans
amounting to HKS1 milion (2005 HK$1 rmillion) were used to reduce the existing level of contnbutions At
31st Decamber, 2008, there was no forfeited coninbutions and earmings available 10 tha Group to reduce
its contributions to the defined contnbution plans in fulure years (2005 ni)

Defined Benefit Retirement Plan operating in Hong Kong

Cerlan subsidianes of ihe Group operate a defined benefit reursment plan in Hong Kong for ther eligble
employees Contnbutions to the defined benefit plan are made by the employeas al either 5 or 7 per cent
of the employees salaries and contnbutions made by the employer are based on the recommendations
of an independent actuary according 1o 2 penodic actuanal valuaton of the plan
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32. Retirement Plans (Cant’d)
(b) Defined Benefit Retirement Plan operating in Hong Kong (Cont'd)

Actuanal valuation of the defined benefit plan according to HKAS 19 *Employee Benafits”™ was carned out
at 31st December, 2006, by Mr Billy Y L. Wong of Watson Wyatt Hong Kong Limited, who s a Feliow of
the Society of Actuanies The present value of the defined benefit obhgations, the related cunent service
cost and past servica cost,  any, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method The pnncipal
actuanal assumptions used are as follows

2006 2005
Discount rate at 315t December 3 75% per annum 4 25% per annum
Expected rate of salary increase 5% per annum 5% per annum

The following amounts in respect of the defined benefit plan have been charged/(crednad} 1o the
consolidated income statement under operaling costs

HKS milion 2006 2005
Current service cost 2 2
Interest cost 2 2
Expected return on plan assets 4 {4)
Amortisation of transitional hability 1 1
Reduction of net asset due to lmut per paragraph 58(b)

ol HKAS 19 - 1
Net amount charged to consolidated income statement 1 2

The actual return on plan assets for the year ended 31st December, 2006 was a gan of HKS1 1 mulhon
(2005 HKSS rullion)
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32. Retirement Plans (Cont'd)
() Defined Benefit Retirement Plan operating in Hong Kong (Cont'd)

The amount included in the consolidated balance sheet at 31st December, 2006 anaing from the Group's
obligations in respect of its defined benefit plan in Hong Kong s as follows

HKS millon 2006 2005
Present value of defined benefit obligations g2 56
Unrecognised actuanal losses - (3)
Farr value of plan assets (75) 62}
Unrecognised transiional hability - {1)
Reduction of net asset due to limit per paragraph 58(b)

of HKAS 19 - 1

Employee retirament benefit assets classified as other
non-current assets included in the consolidated
balance sheet {13) (9}

Changes in the present value of the defined benelit obligations are as folows

HK$ million 2006 2005
At 1st January 56 62
Current sernvice cosl 2 2
Interest cost 2 2
Actual benefits paid 2} {7)
Actual employee contnbutions 1 1
Actuanal loss/(gan) on obhigation 3 (4}
At 31st December 62 56

Changes in the far value of the plan assets are as follows

HK$ milion 2006 2005
At 1st January 62 60
Expected relurn 4 4
Actuanal gain an plan assets 1
Actual comparny contributions 3
Actual employee contnbutions 1 1
Actual bengfits paid 2 o]
At 31st December 75 62
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32. Retirement Plans (Cont’'d)

(b) Defined Benefit Retirement Plan operating in Hong Kong (Cent'd)

Major categones of the plan assets at the balance sheel date are analysed as follows

As at 315t December 2006 2005
Equity instruments 52% 51%
Debt instruments 48% 49%
Total 100% 100%

The expected rate of return on assels was 6 5 per cent, per annum (2005 6 5 per cent per annum) This
rata 15 derved by taking the welghted average of the long term expected rate of return on each of the

asset classes invested,

The expenence adjustment 15 as follows

HKS million 2006 2005
Prasent value of defined benefit obligations 62 56
Fair value of the plan asseis (75) 62)
Surplus (13) 6)
Expenence adjustment on plan asse's 7 2

The Group racogmised actuanal gains amounttng 1o HK$4 mifion (2005 nil} for the year ended 31st
Decaember, 2006 directly In the statement of recognised income and expense The cumulative amount of
actuanal gans recognised directly in statement of recogrused mcomse and expense amounted (o HKS15

mulbon (2005 i) as at 3tst December, 2006

On 1st January, 2002, the Group adopted Statemant of Standard Accounting Practice 34 "Employee
Benefits” and dstermined the ransitional iabiiy for its defined benefil plan 1o be HKE13 millon Thig
amount 15 being recognised on a straight line basls over a penod of 5 years from 1st January, 2002 A
charge of HK$1 millon (2005 HK$1 milfion) was recogrised in the cumrent year As at 31st December,
2008, the transitional hability has been fully recogrised (2005 HKS1 milion unrecogrised)
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32. Retirement Plans (Cont’d)
(b} Defined Benefit Retlrement Plan operating in Hong Kong (Cont'd)

Ancther acluanal valuation was completed at 1s1 January, 2007 by Mr Billy Y L. Wong, the sams actuary
as mentonad above, 10 determine the funding rales 1o be adopted by the Group in accordance with
requirementa of Cccupational Relirement Schemes Ordinance The actuanal melhod adopted was
Attained Age Funding Method The major assumptions used were the long-term average annual rate of
invastmant retum on the plan assets at 6 per cent per annum, and the average annual salary mereases at
S percent per annum The actuanal valuat:on showed that the far value of thé plan assets attributable to
the Group of HKE75 milkon at 31st December, 2006 represants 135 per cent. of the present value of the
obligatrons as at that dats, Contributions {o fund the obligations are based upon the recommendations
of actuary to fully fund the retirement plan on an ongoing basis The funding rates are subject to annual
raview

The Group expects to make a contnbution ¢f HK$3 miflion to the defined benefit plan during the next
financial year

{e) Defined Benefit Retirement Plan operating in the United Kingdom

Cambndge Water PLC a whally-owned subsidiary acquired by the Group on 281h Apni, 2004, operates
a defined benefit ratirement plan in the United Kingdorm The retirement plan s covered under the Water
Companies Pension Scheme of which the Company Is a member Contributions 1o the defined benefit
plan are made by the employees at 6 per cent of the employees’ salanes and contnbutions made by the
employer are based on the recommendations of an ndependent actuary acconding 1o a penodic actuanal
valuation of the pfan

Actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plan was updated to 31st December, 2008, by Mr Paul Metcalt
of Lane Clark & Peacock LLP, who s a Fellow of the Inshlute of Actuanes The principal actuanal
assumptions used are as follows

2006 2005
Discount rate at 31st December 5 0% per annum 4 9% per annum
Expected rate of pension ncrease 3 1% per annum 2 8% per annum
Expected rate of salary increase 5 1% per annum 4 B% per annum
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32. Retirement Pians {Cont'd)

(c)

Defined Benefit Retirement Plan operating in the United Kingdom (Cont'd)

The following amounts in respect of the defined benefit plan have been chamged/{credited) to the

consohdated Income statement under operating costs

HK$ mullion 2006 2005
Current service cost 9 8
Interest cost 20 19
Expected return on plan assets {23) 21)
Others {8) 5]
Net amount (credited)/charged to consoldated

income statement 2 12

The actual retum on plan assets for the year ended 31st Decamber, 2006 was a gan of HKS35 million

(2005 HKESS mullion)

The amount included n the consclidated balance sheet at 31st December, 2006 ansing from tha Group's

obligations in respect of s defined banefit pian in the United Kingdom is as follows:

HK$ millron 2006 2005
Present value of defined benefit abigations 478 395
Far value of plan assets (463) (374)
Employes retrement bensht iabilities classified as other

non-current abilities included i the consohdated

balance sheet 15 21
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32. Retirement Plans (Cont'd)
(c} Defined Benefit Retirement Plan operating in the United Kingdom [Cont'd)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows

HKS mikon 2006 2005
At 15t January 395 389
Current service cost 9 9
nerest cost 20 19
Employes contnbulions 2 2
Actuanal loss 7 38
Benafits paid {12) (12}
Exchange transtation ditferences 57 (50)
At 31st Dacember 478 395

Changes In the far value of the plan assets are as follows

HKS million 2006 2005
At 1st January 374 362

Expected return 23 21

Actuanal gan 12 38
Employer contributions 6 5
Employes contributions 2 2
Benefits pad (12) 2
Exchange translaton differences 58 42
At 315t December 463 374

Major categones of the plan assals at the balance sheet date are analysed as follows

As at 31st December 2006 2005
Equity instruments 63% 61%
Debt instruments 7% 39%
Total 100% 100%

The expecled rate of relurn on assels was 6.0 per cent, per annum (2005 6 3 per cent per annum) This
rate s derived by taking the werghted average of the long term expected rate of return on each of the
assel classes invested
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32.

33.

Retirement Plans {Cont'd)

{c)

Defined Benefit Retirement Plan operating in the United Kingdom (Cont'd)

The expenence adjustments are as folows

HKS mulfion 2006 2005
Present value of the defined benefit obiigations 478 385
Far value of the plan assets (463) {374)
Daficit 15 21
Expenence adjustment on plan liabilties - 4
Expenence adjustment on plan assels (12) (38)

The above actuanal valuation showed that the far value of the plan assets attributable to the Group of
HK$463 million at 31st December, 2006 represents 95 per cent of the present value of the obligations as
at that day The Group's future annual contnbution 1s designed to fund the shortiall over a period of ime
and the employer funding rates have been increased since 1st Apnl, 2005 The funding rates are subject

to annual review

The Group expecls 1o make a contnbuuon of HK$? million to the defined benefil plan dunng the next

financial year

Share Capital

HKS million 2006 2005
Authorised®

4,000,000 000 shares of HK$1 each 4,000 4,000
Issued and fully paid.

2,254,208,945 shares of HK$1 each 2,254 2.254
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34. Reserves and Minority Interests

152

Attributable 1o shareholders of the Company

Property Investmest Exchangs
Share Contributed reraluation revaliabon  Hedging traosabon  Retained Minortty

HAS el Premwm  suples  reseve reserve  resenve  mesee profits  Sublotl  mtensts Total
N 18 iy, 006 ke ] 6,062 - -] 55 B5 16965 ;6 A8 Liw
Surrls on reakuaton of propéries upon trarsier 16

PRSI Yoperas - - 12 - - - 17 - z
Loss o lar vae charges of axababie-ky-sole brorcal assess - - - ] - - o5 - 06
Gan 2 bar vakee cranges of cewatvers desgraten as

£56CTva 25 how hedges - - - - k4 - - =3 . m
Extenge randzon Shrencss - - - - - [<i1) <1 - v
Het qanfoss) ecogresse dvecty n gty - - 12 e} o <o) - 3] - &
Ra:aleon aeior and secrangs rarsiaton aupls

estese] upon cheposal of avakaoke-dor-sale rancal asseny - - - ] - 1% - - - -
Dispersal of assoczains - - - - ] fsv. 2] - el
Proit 2 the year - - - - - - BT 6 M B4
ToAa recogresed ncoma and expenss kor Lie yoot - - 2 21) k3 {01} 6007 5654 {165 S48
Frod dveterd for e yr 2004 pad - - - - - - ey s - (s
e chvidendd past - - - - - - B4 641 - 41}
Owicerd pad o mringnty shareholders of 4 1on

vholy-owned sibadkay - - - - - - - @ e}
A tst Decembes, 2005 186 €002 12 k) 1 153 FIRE 32 B N8
Cumulative enpact fom adopaon of

Avendment ' HKAS 19 frota Xaf - - - - - - ha) 14 - 041
Surplss on reval.sation of properbes upon {rar iy 10

vestment priperes - - L) - - - . “ - &
Gan o b vae changes of avaable-bor-sale Bnancad assaty - - - V) - - - & - 4
Loss o bar value changes of denvatives desgnatad 23

Glectve cash fow hedges - - - - 140 - 04 - 04h
Achsard gang of doinad benelt reTement sahemes - - - - - - 190 190 - t
Exchergs angion Slerwes - - - - - s o3 - o
et ganfiosy] "ecogresac dmctly n ogty - - 9 a2 147 4 £16 - 2
Prokt o e year - - - - - - 3670 kti] 3 3R
“Total reoognesadd reora and Expenss lor e ye - - “ 2 {140 arg 4485 3 R ¢]
Frd dhvcerd) #r the yer 2005 paxd - - - - - - {5, 58 - nHg
Intarm dviderd pac - - - - - - &1 64 - o)
A 315t Dacerrber, 206 18% 8062 ] (] g @ .70 1 4t nsHN
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35. Notes to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HKS milion 2008 2005
Profit before taxation 3,677 5,908
Gain on disposals of associates - (3.763)
Imparmant losses 279 1,727
Share of results of associates (2,751} {3.183)
Share of results of jointly controlied entities {737) (311)
Interest income from loans granted to associates (392} {856)
Interest mcome from banks {384) (259)
Interest income from investment in securies 63) {24)
Finance lease income {1} (2)
Return from infrastructure project nvestments {99) {138)
Finance costs 523 732
Depreciation of propaerty, plant and equipment 52 134
Amortisation of prepayment for leasehotd land 10 1
Change n far values of invastment properhes {3) 3)
Loss/{Gan) on disposals of property, plant and equpmeant 2 9)
Gan on disposal of Infrastructure project investment {115} (14)
Write back on allowance for investment in a jointly controlled entity {27} -
Gain on disposals of listed secuniies - {n
Change in farr values of invastments in securiies 24 {16)
Change n fair values of denvative financial instrumants 48 -
Divdend from investmeant in securities {3) -
Pansion costs of defined benefit retirement plans {1) 14
Unrealsed exchange gam (24) (249)
Returns receved from jontly coniralled entitias 660 924
Returns received from Infrastructure project nvestments 147 346
Distnbution recevad from investment in secunties 66 -
Interast receved from associates 212 443
Contnbutions to defined benefit rebrement plans ©) {8)
Net cash recesved/(paid) at close of denvative financial Instruments 12 (43)
Opsrating cash flows bafare changas in working capilal 1,104 1,360
Decrease in inventorles 6 58
{lncrease)/Decrease 1n debtors and prepayments [60) 506
Increase in crediiors and accruals 136 101
Exchange translation diferences 4) {15)
Cash generatad from operations 1,182 2,010
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. Emoluments of Directors and Five Highest Paid Individuals

Oirectors’ emoluments compnse payments to the Company's directors by the Group in connechon wath the
management of the affars of the Group. The emoluments of sach of the Company s dractors for the current year,
excluding emoluments receved from the Group’s associates, are as follows

Bagc Salaries, Prondent Inducement of Total Total
Allowances and Fund Compensaton Emolumenls  Emoluments
HKS milion | Fees Othar Benefits Bonuses Contnbutons Fees 2006 2005
1 Tear Kuor, Victor™ ! .07 - 800 - - 807 807
Kam Hng Lani ' 007 420 a7 - - B.14 814
Ip Tk Chuen, Edmaond 007 180 415 - - 602 531
Fok'Kin Ning, Caning™ 007 - - - - 0.07 007
Kwan Bing Sing Eric 007 122 160 or - 5t 908
Chaw Woo Mo Fang, Susar 007 - - - - 0.07 007
Frank John Six! ' 007 - - . - 007 007
Tso Ka Sum? 00?7 - - - - 001 oo?
Cheong Ying Clew Harey™ 016 - - - - 016 016
Les Pu Lrg. Angeva 007 - - - - oor 007
Bame Cock® oor - - - - 007 039
Kwok Eva L se® 01 - - - - 0,14 0.1¢
5 Sow-Ma™ D14 - - - - 054 01
Coln Stovens Ruseel® 015 - - - - 0.6 018
Lan'Hong Tsung, Davd™ 014 - - - - o4 012
Goorge Cofin Magns™ | oor - - - - 007 007
Andrew John Hunter o.M 0.48 ¥ 44 006 - 198 -
Total for the year 2006 152 1270 19,06 o - 35,05
Toua for the yeur 2005 149 1206 1667 087 - 219
[
Noles.

Dunng the current year, Mr L1 Tzar Kuol, Victor, Mr Kam Hing Lam, Mrs Chow Woo Ma Fong, Susan, Mr Frank John Sxi
and Mr Tso Kai Sum each recawved directors’ fees of HKS70,000 (2005 HKS70,000), Mr Fok Kin Ning Canning receved
directors fees of HKS120,000 (2005 HKS78,334) and Mr George Colin Magnus recewved HKS70,000 {2005 HKS111,667)
from Hongkong Electric Except for HKS70,000 (2005 HKS$11,667) recaned by Mr. George Coin Magrws for actng a
non-executive direcior of Honglkong Electne since 151 November, 2005, the directors' fees totaliing HK$470,000 (2005
HKS528,334) wera then pad back 1o the Company

Drrectors fee received by the director from a subsediary of the Comparty was paid back to the Company and s not included
In the amounts above

Independent non-executive diectors {TINED”), audit commitiee members ("ACM") and remuneration commitiee members
{RCM" - Dunng the year, Mr Cheong Ying Chew Henry, Ms Kwok Eva Lee, Ms Sng Saw-Me), Mr Colin Stevens Russe)
and Mr Lan Hong Tsung, Dawvd have acted as INED and ACM of the Company Mr Cheong Ying Chew, Henry and Mr Colin
Stevens Russet have acted as RCM of the Company dunng the year The total emchsaments pad to these INED ACM and
RCM dunng tha cument year are HKS740 000 (2005 HKST720,440)

GCHEUNG KONG INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED




NO'I:'ES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. Ellnoluments of Directors and Five Highest Paid Individuals {(Cont'd)

Ofithe 5 ndmduals \l.vith the highest emoluments In the Group, 4 (2005 4} are drectors whose emaoluments are
disclosed above The aggregate of the emolurnents in respect of the remaling 1 (2005 1) indmdual falls within

the band of HK$4,500,001 to HKS5,000,000, detais of which are set out below

HK$ million 2006 2005

Saianes and benaﬁt's in kind 2 2

Co:nlnbutuons to rel:lremem plan 1 1

Bopuses i 2 2
i

Total <] 9

{
|

37. Commitments

{a) The Group's capital commitments outstanding at 31st December and not provided for in the financial

statemnents are as follows

Contracted but not Authornised but not
provided for contractod for
HKS milion 2006 2005 2006 2005
1

Investments l:"\ associates and

Jointly controfled entities 13 1,328 - -
Plant and machinery 4 8 33 39
Total 17 1,336 33 39

(b) At 315t Dacember, the Group had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases In

respect of land and buidings, which fall due as follows:

HK$ milion ' 2006 2005
Withun 1 year 5
In the 2nd to 5th year, inclusive 7
Total 7 12
|
!
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NO'I}'ES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38.

39.

156

|
|

Contingent Liabilities

HKS mulion 2006 2005

Guarantea in respec't of bark loans drawn by a joinlly controlied entity 586 544

Guarantee in respect of performance bonds 141 20
1

Total 727 664

i

|

Material Related Party Transactions

Dunng the year, the Group advanced HK$90 midlion (2005 HKS81 milion) 101ts unfisled associates The Group
received repayments totaling HK$3 mulion (2005 HK$1 milion) from unksted associates The total outstanding
loan balances as at 31st Dacember, 2006 amounted to HK$4,237 million (2005 HK$3,848 mllon), of which
HK|S29 milion (2005 HK$28 millon) bore interest with reference to Australian Bank Bill Swap Reference Rate
and HKE3,7¢1 milion (2005, HK$3,366 million) at fixed rates ranging from 10 § per cent to 20 0 per cent , and
HKS417 million (2005 HK$454 millon) was interest-free The average effective interest rate of the loan granted to
associates 1s 10 8 per cent (2005 159 per cent) As stated In note 6, interest from 10ans granted 0 associates
dunng the year amounted 1o HK$382 miion {2005 HK$E856 milion) Except for a loan of HKS94 milion (2005
HK$94 million) which was repayable within fifteen years (2005 sixteen years), the loans had no fixed terms of
repayment As slate'd in note 30 the amount due te an unlisted associate bears interest at HIBOR plus 0 75 per
cant {2005 HIBOR plus O 75 per cent ) wath no fixed termns of repayment

Dunng the current y?ar. the Group received repayments 1otaling HKS270 milion (2005 HKS453 mullion} from
jointly contralled entiies The total outstanding loan balances as at 31st December, 2006 amounted to HK$1,376
milion (2005 HKS1,624 mullion), of which HK$251 milkon (2005 HK$444 milion) bora inlerest with reference to
Hoing Kong dollar prime rate, and HK$1,125 milion (2005 HK$1,1B0 million) was interest-free The loans had no
fixed terms of repayl?wem

Moreover, the Group's sales and purchases of infrastructure matenals to/from a jointly controlled entity for the
current year amounted 1o HK$180 milion (2005 HK$174 million) and HKS37 mdion {2005 HKE149 million),

respectively

The emoluments of key management havae bean presented In note 36 above

| .
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NOTES TO '.[I'HE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. Approval of Fi'nancla! Sltatements

Th|a financial stalem:ents sel out on pages 104 1o 163 were approved by the Board of Directors on 15th March,

20|0?
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

|

Appendix 1 .

The table betow shows the subsidianas as at 31t December, 2006 wiich, in the opinion of the Diectors, pancipally
affected the results or assets of the Group To give details of all the subsidianes would, n the opiruon of the Directors,

result In particulars of excesswve langth

: ‘ Proportion of
l ; Issued share neiminal valie
captal of 1ssued capral
, Parvalue  held by the Group
Name : Number per share {per cent) Prctpal acbvibes
j
INCOHPOI;MTED AND OPERATING IN HONG KONG
Anderson Asa (Holdings) Limred 2 obrary HKSO 5 10 investment holding
65,760,000 HK805 -
non-votng defamed
Anderson Asphalt Lrnded 35,000 ordinary HK$100 100 Producton and
' tayng of asphatt and
' avestment hoiding
I
Cheung Kong Infrastructure Finance Company Limted 2 ocdinary HKS1 100 Fnancng
Chea Cane!m Company (mematond) Limtza 1,000,000 ordnary HKS1 0 inveszent hakang
I
Green Iland Cement Company, Limited 76.032.000 omirary HKS2 100 Manufachumg sale ad
testribubon of carment
and property mestment
Gueen Island Cament (Hokings) Limited 101,549,457 oxcnary HKS2 100 vestment hekding
|
|
IHCOHPOIIIATED IN BRITISH VIRGIN ISLAKDS
AND QPERATING IN KONG KONG
Cheung Kong Infrastruciurg Finance (BVT) Limed 1 ondnery Usst 109 Francng
Daredon Assets Limvled | 1 ominary Usst 100 Treasury
reen kstand Inematonal (BV) Limved 1 onnary LSSt 100 investmert haiing

1
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PRINCIPAL 'SUBSIDIARIES

Appendix 1 (Cont'd)

Propartion of
Issued share nominal value
capstal ol 1ssued capial
Parvalue  held by the Group
Name | Number per share {per cent) Pnncipal actvilies
INCORPQRATED IN HONG KONG AND
OPERATING IN MAINLAND CHINA
Creung Kong Chna Infrastructure ww 2 cedinary HK$1 100 Investment hekding angd
f nvestment n nirastuctre
/ prosects n Mantand China
INCORPORATED AND DPERATIJNG IN AUSTRALIA
Cneung Kong Infrastructure Finance (Australia) Pty Ltd 1 dinary A 100 Fnanang
INCORPORATED AND OPERATING IN THE UNITED KINGDOM
Cambridge Water PLC 14,621,152 1605 100 Wiater supply
ondnary

Note The shares of all the above subsidiaries are ndiractly hekd by tha Company
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PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

Appendix 2

|
The table befow shows the associates as at 31st Decembear, 2006 which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group To gve details of all the associates would, in the opinion of the Directors,

resutt In particulars of excessve length

Approumate
Issued shara share of equity
capiial shares held
Par value by the Group
Name | Humber per sharg {per cent.) Pancipal actvities
]
INCORPORATED AND OPERATING IN HONG KONG
Honghong Electnz Holdings Limvted {ncta 1) 2,134.261854 HES1 3% Blectnory genaration
ordinary and ésinbubon
Eastern Harbour Crossng Company Limded 35,300,000 HSI10 % Exercse of a francyse
ordnary to operate the rad section
of atunnel
|
INCORPORATED AND OPERATING IN AUSTRALIA
€754 ULlfles Partnership (pote 2) ! N/A NA 23 Blectncaty distributon
CKUHE Bectnoty Destribubon Pry Limited (note 3) 810000.000 AS1 23 Bectnorty disinbution
odnary
CKUHB Bectnorty Distrioution Two Pty Limdted (nota 4) 180000000 51 P Beciroty ostribubn
ordinary
37,188 524,600 ASOD
orginary
CrossCiy Motorway Hokdngs Ply'Limited {nala 5) 3636,548 ASOO1 5 Operalion of
orchnary Gross Cay Tunnel
CroseCity Motarway Haldings Trust fnote 5} NA A 50 Operaton of
Cross Ciy Tumned
Lane Cova Tunned Holding Company Pty Linried [note &) 42827,999 ASt 40 Construction and
orminary operaton of
Lane Cove Tund
I
Lane Cc\[fe Tunnel Hoiding Trust {note 6) NA N/A 4 Construchon and
1 operaton of
Lane Cove Tunnet
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PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

i
i |

Apper?dix 2 (Cont'd)

' ! Approximate

1 ‘ Issued share shara of aquity

capital shares held

Par value by the Group
Hame Number per share {per cent Pnncipal activities

INCORPQRATED AND OPERATING IN THE UNITED KINGDOM
Northern Gas Metworks Holdings Limited 371.670979 £i L] Gas Desirbuton
ordinary
1Speca) £1

The assocate s ksted on Hong Kong Stock Exchange
ETSA Utikhas Partnership, an unincorporated body is formed by the followang companes

CKI Unities Deve'lopmlenl Limited
HEI Lhilhea Development Limited
CKI Utitnias Holdings l.il.lmned
CKIHE! Utiites Drstribution Limited
HEL Unitles Holdngs L‘.mfled

3
QIG Utlites Development Lanited and HE! Utiites Developme i Limited, both of wihsch are associates of the Group own 51 per cent
mitevests in ETSA Lhiltles Partnership

1
The partnership operales and manages tha elactricity disiribution busness n tha State of South Australia of Austraka
I

CKVHEI Electncty Distribution Pty Limited owns 108 per cent interests o the folowng companes ((the Powercor (Group”)

Powercor Propnatary Limited

P|owatw Australa Limdted Liabity Company
Powercor Austraia Holdngs Pty Limtad
Powercor Austrata Limited

The Powercor Group operates and manages an electricity distnbution business in the State of Victona of Australia
[}

CKVHE) Electncty Disinbution Two Pty Limted owns 100 per cent interests n CiiPower | Pty Lid, which s one of fve electncity
distnbutors in the State of Victona of Australia
1
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PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

|

:

Appendix 2 {Cont’d)

Notes (Cont'd)

5

162

ClossGy Motomway Hoklings Pty Limvied or CrossGy Motoway Hokiings Trust own 100 per cent. nterests n 1he folowng
compares ("the Cross City Tunnel Group®}

qusGﬁy Maotorway Ply Limded

CrussCiy Motorway Property Trust

CrossCity Motorway Finance Pty imited
]

ﬁu&o&sCﬂyTumﬂGrmpszo operateﬁowssCitmilnMreyoleﬁa
Lana Cove Tunnel Holldlng Company Pty Limhed or Lane Cave Turinel Holding Trust own 100 per cent nierests n the following
companies {("he Lana Cova Tunnel Group?)

t
émmor Motorways Pty Umited (Formery Lana Cove Tunnel Company Pty Limited)

L'ane Cove Tunnel Trust

Llane Cove Tunnel Finance Company Pty Limited

prCMTmne!G:mps«\gagedtoommandowmemLamCoveTu-melmSydnayofAusuala
!
i
I
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PFIINCIPALIJOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Appendix 3

The table below shows the jontly controlled entities as at 31st December, 2006 which, 1n the opiion of the Directors,
principally affected the resulls or assets of the Group To give detalls of all the jointly controtled entities would, in the

opinion of the Direclors, result In particulars of excesstve length

Percentage of

interest held Profit sharing Pnnclpal

Name | by the Group percentage actvities
INCORPORATED AND OPERATING IN MAIRLAND CHINA

Guangdong Shantou Bay Bndge Co Lid k't 30 Orperation of Shantou

8.y Bndge

Guangdong Zhuhas Power Station Co , Lid 45 45 Operaton of Zhuha

1 Powier Staton

Guangdong Shenzhen-Shantoy Highway (East) Co , Lid 35 335 Oparation of Shenzher—

Shantou Highway

{Eas.am Section)

Guangzhou £ 5-W Ring Road Co,, Ltd 445 45" Operauon of Guangzhau

INCORPORATED AND OPERATING IN HONG KONG

East South West Aung Road

Allance Construction Matenals Limited 50 50 Quarry cpertion and
producton and sale of
concrele and aggregates
Years from 2012 10 2021, inclusiva 37 5 per cent
Thereatter 32 5 per cont
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SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

‘

Appendix 4

Approumate

floer/site area

, Group's  attributable
Lot Interest  to the Group Existing Lease
Location i Number {per cent) (sq. m.) Usage Term
14-18 Tsing Tim Siresat, Tang Yi TYTL S8 100 3,355 1 Medum
TMTL 201 Tap Shek Kok TMITL 204 100 152,855 | Madium

Cerlan unis of Harbour Centre Tower 2,

8 Hok Cheung Street, Hunghom KML113 100 5,528 c Medium

| inclustrial ¢ Commarcal
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